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CORPORATE INFORMATION
TEEH

PLACE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

STOCK CODE

3315

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LU Xiaozhong

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY
Mr. TING Tao |

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Mr. ZHU Lijun
Mr. LIU John Jianhua

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Lijun
Mr. LIU John Jianhua

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Chairman)
Mr. TING Tao |
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
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Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin

Mr. ZHU Lijun

Mr. LIU John Jianhua

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY

LEGAL ADVISOR

Mayer Brown JSM

16th—19th Floors, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LU Run Ting
Ms. LI Yijin

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Deutsche Bank AG, Filiale Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited
Bank of China Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
1 ¥ 5 R (#)

REGISTERED OFFICE AND HEADQUARTERS AMREERAY

Room 2211 i

22nd Floor, ACE Tower, Windsor House i 4

311 Gloucester Road ETITE31M5R

Causeway Bay ERRELTEKNE2E
Hong Kong 21N=E

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND BROoBFETLERRKRREAM
TRANSFER OFFICE B

Tricor Investor Services Limited BEFRSHERZERR A
Level 22, Hopewell Centre BEEERRNERI183E

183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong BRI L221E
COMPANY WEBSITE NESTE B
www.goldpac.com www.goldpac.com
INVESTOR RELATION REEBR

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com & : goldpac@goldpac.com
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China’s first OSCCA (Office of State
Commercial Cryptography Administration)
financial IC Card, for Bank of Changsha

I #1— R £ BIC K ZE f Goldpac A7 i 18 B &7 37
Goldpac A7, a next generation financial IC card
product, successfully certified by OSCCA
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Philippine Personalization Center is certified by
VISA and MasterCard and now is in operation
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Investments in Sichuan Zhongruan
Technology Limited to enter into the smart
city business

2015 ICMAKBI SR E ML E B =
Winner Award of Personalization &

Fulfillment of 2015 ICMA Elan Award
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REINEE
First in China to be awarded the Quality
Management System Certification by
China UnionPay
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Innovative Secure Payment Solution —
Peng An Yi —won INT'L SOFT CHINA
2015 Innovation Product Award
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Certified by ISO 27001 Information Security
Management System
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Goldpac’s Shipment of Payment
Cards with Chips, World Top 4

2015 [ EmBEBELEM AR LM
Honored as Golden Bauhinia Award for the
Listed Company of Most Valuation Brand 2015
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First Business Registration License
Banking Card in China for Henggin
Free Trade Zone
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Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai) Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary, renamed as “Goldpac Limited”
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHRE

EME # F
LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

EFERAITES

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Directors” and “Board” respectively) of Goldpac

Group Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted
to present the Annual Report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year

ended 31 December 2015.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

In 2015, being the global leader in payment solutions, the Group
developed itself along its core strategic initiatives that focus on
“reinforcing core business, expanding overseas markets and
accelerating innovation for the diversification of payment solutions”.
Both turnover and net profit recorded double-digit growth.
Furthermore, the Group's core business of payment solutions was
ranked as one of the global leaders and the first in China in terms of
financial payment card shipment. Leveraging on the internationalization
of the RMB and adhering to China's “the Belt and Road”initiative, the
Group continuously expanded its overseas market presence and
successfully entered into a number of emerging markets in South Asia,
Middle-East and Africa. In order to satisfy market demands in an era of
payment solutions diversification and assist clients in enhancing their
core competitiveness, the Group delivered a continuous stream of
innovative operation systems and products, which significantly
bolstered the Group's financial performance.

As the industry leader, the Group pledges to always fulfill its promises
to shareholders by delivering performance excellence. Since the listing
of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Group has developed
extraordinarily well, with the turnover and net profit of the year 2015
surging 149% and 110% compared to that of the year 2012 before
the listing. The profitability remains at the top level of the global
industry. In addition, the dividend keeps a steady increase. The Board
proposed to declare a final dividend of HK11 cents (equivalent to
approximately RMB9 cents) per ordinary Share and special dividend of
HK4 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB3 cents) per ordinary
Share.

Inspired by our vision of “Making Transactions More Secure and
Convenient”, the Group has set its middle-term target to be one of the
world's top 3 companies in the secure payment industry. Armed with
our core strategic initiatives that focus on “reinforcing the core
business, expanding overseas markets and accelerating innovation for
the diversification of payment solutions”, the Group will devote every
effort to fulfilling this ambitious objective.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ER|E H)
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REINFORCING THE CORE BUSINESS

Looking ahead, the Group has confidence in the development of
the global payment solutions industry. The core advantages of
the smart card within the global payment infrastructure, its
affordability and security, help to cement its central role in future
payment developments. Furthermore, geographic areas and
cross-industry application are yet to be developed and represent
massive market potential. Besides, the wider global adoption of
NFC (Near Field Communication) will boost the further
improvement of the contactless payment transaction environment
and create greater space for market growth. Taking advantage of
“2i Integration”* and the 020 (Online to Offline) model, the
Group will deepen the interaction and viscosity between clients
and the Group to enhance the client experience through
operational efficiency improvement and operating model reform.
This will further sharpen the competitiveness of our core business.

EXPANDING OVERSEAS MARKETS

Overseas markets are a significant growth silo for the Group's
future business development. The steps towards RMB
internationalization continue to accelerate while China’s “the Belt
and Road” initiative has presented a magnificent blueprint for
global regional cooperation. The globalization strategies of China
UnionPay Co., Ltd. (“China UnionPay”) and China’s leading
financial institutions are creating favorable opportunities for the
Group's overseas expansion.

In the Southeast Asia region, the Group will continue to secure its
leadership advantage. In addition to making the most of the
market potential being exposed by upcoming EMV (Europay,
MasterCard and VISA) migrations in the Philippines, Thailand and
Indonesia etc, the Group will also seek development opportunities
in the internet finance service. Meanwhile, the direction of EMV
migration in South Asia and the Middle-East is gradually
becoming apparent. African markets are also entering their
beginning stages. The Group will be well-prepared for both this
secure payment market blockbuster as well as Cloud platform
and data processing service opportunities, and will accelerate the
promotion of complete solutions to the global market.

Integration of Information Technology and Industrialization

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

ACCELERATING INNOVATION FOR THE
DIVERSIFICATION OF PAYMENT
SOLUTIONS

The payment diversification era brings consumers with the
splendid and convenient payment experience. To keep up with
the pace and diversity of the evolution of payment, financial
institutions are increasingly in urgent demand for innovation. The
Group believes that by meeting client needs through product,
service and solution innovation, it will create continuing and
persistent opportunities for future development and business
sustainability.

Capitalizing on its healthy financial position and sufficient
funding, the Group will also be looking to be more proactive with
merger and acquisition opportunities in order to expand its areas
of business in the payment diversification era. These efforts will
focus on expansion opportunities in mobile payment,
international remittance and exchange, third-party payment and
internet finance; all of which assist in creating greater value for
shareholders.

Looking into the future, the Group is full of confidence.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, members of the
Board, management teams, the staff and business partners of the
Group.

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

REINFORCING CORE BUSINESS, EXPANDING
OVERSEAS MARKETS AND ACCELERATING
INNOVATION FOR THE DIVERSIFICATION OF
PAYMENT SOLUTIONS

In 2015, being the global leader in payment solutions, the Group
developed itself along its core strategic initiatives that focus on
“reinforcing core business, expanding overseas markets and
accelerating innovation for the diversification of payment solutions”.
Both turnover and net profit recorded double-digit growth.
Furthermore, the Group’s core business of payment solutions was
ranked as one of the global leaders and the first in China in terms of
financial payment card shipment. Leveraging on the internationalization
of the RMB and adhering to China’s “the Belt and Road” initiative, the
Group continuously expanded its overseas market presence and
successfully entered into a number of emerging markets in South Asia,
Middle-East and Africa. In order to satisfy market demands in an era of
payment solutions diversification and assist clients in enhancing their
core competitiveness, the Group delivered a continuous stream of
innovative operation systems and products, which significantly
bolstered the Group's financial performance.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In 2015, the Group’s turnover was RMB1,685 million, representing an
increase of 10.8% as compared with the preceding year, while net
profit was recorded at RMB242 million, representing an increase of
13.1% as compared with the preceding year. The recorded growth
rates were distinctly above industry average. An increase in the
proportion of chip-based products shipped, coupled with the decline in
overall average selling price caused a slight decrease in profit margin.
However, net profit margin remained stable at 14.4%, leading the
industry globally.

Strong R&D (Research and Development) capabilities have always been
one of the core strengths of the Group. In 2015, the Group reinforced
its R&D capabilities with a total R&D cost of approximately RMB80
million, representing an increase of 13.1% as compared with the
preceding year and fully demonstrating the Group’s strategy to be R&D
driven.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Reinforcing Core Business

In 2015, the Group further strengthened its leading position in
the core business of payment solutions. China is one of the
largest financial IC card market in the world. Although hindered
by the slowing economic growth in 2015, China achieved a
stronger GDP (Gross Domestic Product) growth than most
countries in the world and China’s banking card market still saw
significant development. In 2015, the Group’s market share of
China UnionPay payment card worldwide shipments remained to
be the largest at approximately 15.5% while the Group’s financial
IC card shipments recorded an increase of 36.4% as compared
with the preceding year. The Nilson Report published in
September 2015 stated that the Group became the world’s No.4
financial IC card supplier with a global market share of
approximately 6.0% — an advancement of 1.5 percentage points
as compared with the preceding year.

In adhering to the Chinese government's strategy of 2i
Integration, the Group accelerated the amalgamation of its
industrial operations and IT applications to meet client demands
for a professional, differentiated and effective operation model.
In 2015, the Client Collaboration System was launched. This
system integrates the data management systems of the supplier
and clients and enables the utilization of Big Data analysis. In
doing so, clients are able to maintain the lowest possible
inventory levels, whilst shortening delivery times and performing
precise production forecasting. Deployed by a large joint-stock
commercial bank in China, this system helped expedite delivery,
reduce inventory and improved the core competitiveness of such
bank.

Expanding Overseas Markets

In 2015, leveraging on the internationalization of RMB and
adhering to the China’s “the Belt and Road” initiative, the Group
seized the opportunities created by the globalization of China
UnionPay and China’s leading financial institutions. This led to
the significant expansion of the Group’s overseas market
presence and the Group saw a substantial increase in turnover
generated from sales overseas, as compared with the preceding
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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In the Southeast Asia region, the Group’s new personalization
center in the Philippines is now in operation. Additionally, a
liaison office has been set up in Singapore to strengthen the
overseas marketing team of the Group in preparation for the
upcoming EMV migration in emerging markets such as Indonesia,
the Philippines and Thailand. Southeast Asia possesses a vast
territory which is densely populated with a remarkably low
banking service coverage ratio. Therefore, the Group plans to
explore the opportunities to provide internet financial services in
the region and to promote the development of Inclusive Financial
System** promoted by the United Nations.

In 2015, the Group successfully entered into the markets in
Africa, the Middle East and South Asia. The African and Middle
Eastern markets have a total population of over 1.5 billion.
Meanwhile, South Asia is one of the most densely populated
regions in the world with a steadily growing economy. The
payment solutions industries in these regions are at their
beginning stages and carry massive market potential.

Accelerating Innovation for the
Diversification of Payment Solutions

Currently, internet financial services in the world are undergoing
a broad range of developments with emerging mobile payment
mediums driving the way forward. In order to benefit from the
opportunities created, financial institutions are in urgent need of
innovative and diverse payment solutions. Guided by the key
principle of creating value for clients, and with over twenty-years
of experience in executing successful projects and technological
development, the Group broke new ground by introducing
innovative products, services and platforms that assisted clients in
enhancing their competitive advantages in this new era of
payment solutions diversification.

xk Means the comprehensive financial system that provides services to all
sectors and groups in the society.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In 2015, the Chinese government strengthened the
implementation of its strategies in promoting security and
manageability of data. This promotes the development of China’s
domestic financial IC chip and OSCCA (Office of State
Commercial Cryptography Administration) algorithm. Being a key
contributor towards China’s national financial IC migration, the
Group developed the Goldpac A7, a chip card product that has
passed the test of the SCA (State Cryptography Administration)
of China. The Group also assisted the Bank of Changsha to
launch one of the first state cryptographic algorithm financial 1C
cards in China, in preparation for the large-scale commercial
implementation of China’s national IC chip.

In 2015, metal and embedded multimedia cards were launched
by the Group and the Group immediately saw an drastic increase
in turnover. As a revolutionary card body innovation, the metal
card body is designed for high-end users with extravagant need.
Through online sales promotion, the metal card did not only gain
popularity among the high-end users but also gained popularity
among the younger consumer group. Based on the combination
of the Group’s proprietary LED sparkling card and music card
technologies, the Group launched an embedded multimedia card
that can shimmer or play a melody during contactless
transactions. The embedded multimedia card transforms the
traditional payment card experience and brings with it novel
visual and aural effects. These features assist banks and retailers
by creating cross-sale marketing opportunities and help them to
capture the young and fashionable consumer segment.

The Group also developed a Bluetooth Card product utilizing low-
energy bluetooth technologies. This product aims to replace cards
used for different purposes with a single Bluetooth Card.
Furthermore, wearable products with payment functions were
officially launched in the market and are gaining popularity. Three
styles of the Group’s wristband products, namely Classic, Sports
and Fashion, are undergoing testing by banks and companies
operating public transportation. The Group has successfully
launched embedded SE (Secure Element) components for
wearable products to assist wearable OEMs (Original Equipment
Manufacturer) within the industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEER W R D

As a leader in the payment solutions industry, the Group has also
devoted itself to social and environmental agendas and undertook
various eco-protection responsibilities through product
innovation. In 2015, the Group developed a genuinely eco-
friendly card. This new product is valuable in helping the smart
card industry to reduce its impact on the environment and also
represents a viable solution for clients looking to meet their social
and environmental responsibilities.

The Group is expanding its areas of business through mergers
and acquisitions and capital operations to continue the
diversification of payment solutions towards a wider business
area. The Group has officially invested into Sichuan Zhongruan
Technology Limited (SCZR), accelerating the Group’s development
in the payment eco-system and the transformation into software
and platform.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31 December 2015, no material events have occurred.

OUTLOOK

In view of the evolution of the global payment solutions industry, the
mid-term development target of the Group is to become one of the
three largest payment solutions suppliers in the world.

In 2016, the slowdown of China’s economic growth is expected to
continue and signs of economic restructuring are expected to emerge.
The banking business could potentially be influenced by the slowing
economic growth and in turn the Group’s businesses in China may be
adversely affected. However, having the track record of successfully
overcoming the 1997 Asian Financial Crisis, the 2004 SARS (Severe
Acute Respiratory Syndrome) outbreak and the 2008 global financial
tsunami, the management of the Group remains confident for 2016.
With the Chinese government’s initiatives towards “Supply-side reform
and global production cooperation”, the Group will intensify its efforts
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ERINBRFTRITESEE K
SEEFHEELE RBEEE UE
mEFEITRERES - R2015F - K
EEERNMAHEEEER EHRR
R ARKBEBRERAITEHERIRE
MNEE TRERFPEHAERRERE
HEeEEMER-

AEEBEBNBATCEMHREAELRE
A ERETEMEBAELER-
20154 » A EEIE AR & 8
BEERAR  BHTEINEER
FUARBRHERFEEBINERER
BT 2B 1K o

HEER

B2015F12A31BHEAERZ HEE X
BHERLE-

A=RE

ERHE2RIMNBARDRTISNLFDN
UEETSRMSONEERBA AEENSP
HEREBIES 2R ZRE
Al =4 e

20164F + T8 71 A B 45 7 3 3R A5 45 1B LR
KREBRESHRLEEFAEDE RITEB
BAREIEETTRAZE SASEEF
EmESEBETRTEBETEEZ - AEBEK
B B5 1997 FF o )M & B/ # ~ 2004 F JE 4
REIAK2008F & RS EL RS &
BEAELE2016FRES BRI 45
Bk e BERERAEIOEE RE®R -
Rig - FEEREAEREAFH L XN
BRGNS BRSINRE - AL R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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in product, service and platform innovation and will aggressively f] - (RIFAREBEBLES - I EER IR
develop its overseas markets to mitigate against these pressures and to 4% 5 7 55 AN 45 1% M 028 2 B° - R EEH R G
maintain its competitive advantages. In addition, under the global BRI AR @ & HE EE 2 k& E AT

economic weakness and industrial restructuring, the Group will B EBETHFAWEMEZEES MmN Eg@
capitalize its steady financial status to seek for opportunities in mergers R K & B &9 9 E R 1E 5k F s = 3 R - ég’?é
and acquisitions for industry consolidation globally, to accelerate its
outreaching expansion and overstepping development. *02:;0
@ b
. 5K
e Core business B ERK 2¥
Looking ahead, the Group is confident in the development of the BELRK KREBHRIRIN#ERT &°
global payment solutions industry. The heavily invested global KN ERAMELD  2HRBER
payment infrastructure currently in place is operating extremely HEEEREN I HERI BT A g é%ﬁ
- s o N £
well. The wider global adoption of NFC will further improve the TE MNFCRIMESREEE RE Fgu
S&

contactless payment smart card transaction environment and
create more room for market growth. Smart cards are becoming
increasingly affordable and more secure. These core advantages
of the smart card help cement its central role in future payment
developments. Furthermore, the application of smart chip cards is
still not saturated in certain geographic areas and industries,
especially in China and the emerging markets such as South Asia,
the Middle-East and Africa, which represent massive market
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Overseas Markets

Overseas markets pose significant room for growth for the
Group's future development. The initiative of “the Belt and Road”
is the Chinese government’s great vision for regional cooperation.
The Silk Road Economic Belt and 2 1st-Century Maritime Silk Road
covers 65 countries and a population of 4.4 billion with an
aggregate GDP of about USD21 trillion, representing
approximately 63% of the global population and 29% of the
global GDP, respectively. At the same time, the internationalization
of the RMB creates new opportunities for win-win cooperation,
driven by the initiative of “the Belt and Road” and will lead to the
realization of a series of regional financial cooperation
mechanisms. This will move the internationalization of RMB
forward into a brand-new stage. China UnionPay and the primary
financial institutions in China are taking this opportunity to carry
out their global development plans, thus creating a favorable
environment for the Group’s overseas expansion.

In the Southeast Asia region, the Group will continue to expand
its leadership advantage. In addition to making the most of the
market potential created by upcoming EMV migrations in
Indonesia, the Philippines and Thailand, the Group will also seek
development opportunities in the realm of internet finance
service. Meanwhile, the direction of EMV migration in the Middle-
East and South Asia is gradually becoming apparent. The Group
will be well-prepared for both this significant secure payment
card growth opportunity as well as Cloud platform and data
processing service opportunities. Meanwhile, Africa is an
immense emerging market, which the Group will continue to
pursue with payment diversification solutions following a strong
startin 2015.

Payment Diversification

The payment diversification era brings consumers with the
splendid and convenient payment experience. To keep up with
the pace and diversity of evolution of payment solutions, financial
institutions are in urgent demand for innovation. The Group
believes that by satisfying client needs through product, service
and solution innovation, it will create continuing and persistent
opportunities for future development and business sustainability.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As a fundamental element of the information industry’s third
wave and a pillar for the fourth industrial revolution, the loT
(Internet of Things) forms part of the Group’s core strategic R&D
development domain. The Group’s advanced research in areas
like the smart city and smart lifestyle has played an important role
in building up the groundwork for the Group’s leading edge loT
developments. The Group will gain momentum in the loT field by
leveraging its core technological competitiveness in identification
and security as well as tapping into a client pool of over 400
financial institutions it has built over the past 20 years to
spearhead its efforts.

The Group is poised to launch its Smart Life solution, a solution
that is built on the benefits of internet technologies. This solution
will further enrich the smart eco-system, extending the smart
payment’s cross-field application into the financial services,
healthcare, transportation, education and training, properties
management, public services and retail sectors. Tailored to the
payment needs of end-users, this Smart Life solution connect
residents, financial institutions, retailers, and city and community
managers together within a complete eco-system. This greatly
facilitates the Group’s swift cross-field and cross-industry
expansion and integration.

Capitalizing on its healthy financial position and sufficient
funding, the Group will also be looking to be more proactive with
merger and acquisition opportunities in order to expand its
business areas in the payment diversification era. These efforts
will focus on expansion opportunities in mobile payment,
international remittance and exchange, third-party payment and
internet finance; all of which assist the Group in creating greater
value for shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEER W R D

DIVIDENDS

2014 Final — HK10.0 cents per ordinary
Share (declared on 19 March 2015 and

based on 831,573,000 Shares) FH7831,573,000 %)

014F FERP—ETRLEBRBE
10.01ll (7201543 A 19H Bk

2013 Final — HK4.8 cents per ordinary
Share (declared on 21 March 2014 and

based on 830,000,000 Shares) £ 7#830,000,000 i%)
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481l (72201453 A821B 8K

% E
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2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®T T
31,540

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK11.0 cents (2014: HK10.0 cents) and special dividend of HK4.0 cents
(2014: nil) per ordinary Share in respect of the year ended 31 December
2015 has been proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM THE INITIAL
PUBLIC OFFERING

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 4
December 2013 with net proceeds from the global offering of
approximately RMB975 million (after deducting underwriting
commissions and related expenses). For the year ended 31 December
2015, the Company did not utilize any net proceeds for the purposes
other than those disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 22
November 2013 (the “Prospectus”).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's aggregate amount of pledged
bank deposits, bank balances, cash and fixed bank deposits reached
approximately RMB1,512 million, (2014: RMB765 million approximately).
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group redeemed all of
its investments in Guangfa Money Market Fund of approximately
RMB740 million.

24 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current assets reached
RMB2,139 million, achieving a growth of 1.8% compared with that of
RMB2,102 million for the year 2014. The current ratio of the Group for
the year 2015 was 2.8, representing a high liquidity.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group's aggregate amount of bank loans
and amounts due to related companies was nil (2014: nil); the gearing
ratio was 0.0% (2014: 0.0%). (Gearing ratio is equivalent to total debt
divided by total equity as at the end of the year. Total debt includes all
interest-bearing bank loans and loans from amounts due to related
parties.) The Group’s leverage ratio was 30.4% as at 31 December
2015 (2014: 30.5%). (The leverage is equivalent to total liabilities
divided by total assets as at the end of the year.)

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had 1,708 employees (1,773 in
2014), with a decrease of 65 employees compared with that as at 31
December 2014. The structure of R&D team was further improved with
increasing number of high-level R&D professionals. Meanwhile, the
number of the front-line operation staff was further reduced due to the
transformation of the Group's business to platform and service.

The staff members are one of the Group’s most important assets. In
addition to offering competitive remuneration packages, the Company
is also committed to providing specialised staff development and
training programs. Generally, a salary review is conducted annually.
Aside from basic remuneration, the Company makes contributions
towards employee mandatory social security funds, pensions, work-
related injury insurance, maternity insurance and medical and
unemployment insurance in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations of the PRC (People’s Republic of China, excluding the
special administrative regions of Hong Kong and Macau for the
purpose of this Annual Report only). The Company also provides full
coverage of housing provident fund contributions as required by local
regulations in the PRC.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESRSREERE

DIRECTORS

The Board is consisted of nine Directors, including four executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain information

relating to the Directors:

=2

EEemNBESFAN BREOERTE
FCCRFENTES ZRBUFNTE
ZUTERRR/BESZRHEN:

Name Age Position in the Group
A Fir EEBK
Executive Directors
HITES
LU Run Ting 61 Chairman & Executive Director
EME TEMBTES
HOU Ping 55 Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
& F WITEEREREATE
LU Runyi 58 Executive Director & Senior Vice President
E R MITEFLSREIER
LU Xiaozhong 47 Executive Director & Senior Vice President
E/NE HITEEL ShEIER
Non-executive Directors
FHITES
Christophe Jacques PAGEZY 57 Non-executive Director
FEHITES
TING Tao | 53 Non-executive Director
TE— FBTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
MAK Wing Sum Alvin 63 Independent Non-executive Director
2K R BYFERTES
ZHU Lijun 62 Independent Non-executive Director
VA BIUFHITES
LIU John Jianhua 65 Independent Non-executive Director
Bl BIUFMTESR
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (ER£E), aged 61, is the chairman and an executive
Director of the Company, and the founder of the Group. He was first
appointed as Director on 10 December 2004 and was designated as an
executive Director with effect from 15 November 2013. Chairman LU is
primarily responsible for the overall strategic planning and overseeing
the general management of the Group. He has over 25 years of
experience in financial card industry. He has been the chairman of the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries, Goldpac Datacard Solutions
Company Limited (“Goldpac Datacard”) and Goldpac Limited (formerly
named as “Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai) Limited"”), since 2011. He was
the managing director and a Director of the Group from 2004 to 2011
and also served as the vice chairman and president of both Goldpac
Datacard and Goldpac Limited from 2000 to 2011 and 1995 to 2011
respectively.

Prior to the establishment of the Group in 1995, Chairman LU had
interest in Goldpac International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL"), the
Company’s controlling shareholder, since 1993, providing card issuance
system solutions. Chairman LU also served as various positions at the
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China prior to the establishment
of GIHL in 1993, including deputy division manager and division
manager at its Zhuhai branch, general manager of the trust investment
company at its Zhuhai branch and general manager of the credit
card company at its Zhuhai branch. Chairman LU was honored as the
finalist award of CNBC Asia Business Leaders Awards in October 2015
and he currently also serves as the chairman of GIHL and a standing
director of the Information Technology Professional Committee of the
China Association for Labor Studies (PB4 82 ez St EEXZES).
Chairman LU received a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2004. Chairman LU
had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

Chairman LU is currently holding 100% interest of GIHL, the
Company'’s controlling shareholder. Chairman LU is the elder brother of
Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEEM®

Mr. HOU Ping (&), aged 55, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company, and joined the Group in 2011.
He was first appointed as a Director on 30 August 2011 and was
designated as an executive Director with effect from 15 November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
Group. Mr. HOU has over 30 years of experience in the banking
industry, including over 15 years of experience in the card industry. He
has been a Director and the chief executive officer of the Company
since 2011. He has served as a director of Goldpac Datacard and a
director and the chief executive officer of Goldpac Limited since 2011.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HOU was the head of credit card
centre at Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd, and was seconded to Huaxia
Bank as chief executive officer of the credit card centre from 2006 to
2011. Mr. HOU served various positions at Bank of China group and
subsequently, BOC Credit Card (International) Limited since 1999,
including as deputy general manager of BOC Credit Card (International)
Limited in Hong Kong from 1999 to 2004. He also currently serves as
an independent non-executive director of the Huijin Technology (Zhuhai)
Co., Ltd GRBES RN AR A F]). Mr. HOU received a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Hong Kong Baptist University
in December 2003. Mr. HOU had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi (E818), aged 58, is an executive Director and a senior
vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in 1995. He was
first appointed as a Director in December 2004 and was designated as
an executive Director with effect from November 2013. He is primarily
responsible for the management of the sales department of the Group.
Mr. LU Runyi, has approximately 20 years of experience in the financial
cards industry. He has been a senior vice president of the Group since
2004 and was a Director of the Company from 2004 to 2010. He
has also been a director of Goldpac Datacard, a director and senior
vice president of Goldpac Limited since 2011, August 2011 and 2004
respectively. Mr. LU Runyi had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi is the younger brother of Chairman LU, who is the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (E/)), aged 47, is an executive Director and a
senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in 1995,
He was first appointed as a Director on 21 May 2013 and was
designated as an executive Director with effect from 15 November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the management of the corporate
business, quality and security department of the Group. Mr. LU has
approximately 20 years of experience in the card industry. He has been
the senior vice president, general manager of the corporate business
management department and chief officer of the information security
division of Goldpac Limited since 2012. Since 2011 to 2014, he acted
as the Director of Goldpac Limited and Goldpac Datacard. He also
served various positions at Goldpac Limited, including general manager
of the production technology centre, general manager of the operation
division and a manager of the production division, from 2009 to 2012,
2001 to 2009 and 1995 to 2001, respectively.

Mr. LU has been an external expert consultant of China UnionPay since
2010 and served as the manager of Jesmay (Zhongshan) Electronics
Co., Ltd. (ELE(FIL)EFERAF) from 1992 to 1995. He served
as a member of the Economic Crime Consultancy expert team of
the Zhuhai Police Bureau. Through these appointments, he has
accumulated relevant experience in compliance, quality control and
confidential information management and intellectual property right of
customers. Mr. LU graduated from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University
in the P.R.C. (E)X#@AZ) with a Bachelor of Engineering degree
in Polymer Materials in July 1990 and received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 2006.

Mr. LU had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEEM®

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY, aged 57, is a non-executive
Director, and joined the Group in 2009. He was first appointed as a
Director on 23 March 2009 and was designated as a non-executive
Director with effect from 15 November 2013, and re-elected as
non-executive director in the Annual General Meeting on 28 May
2014. Mr. PAGEZY was the chairman of the Company from 2009 to
20711. Mr. PAGEZY was a board representative nominated by Gemalto N.V.
("Gemalto”) onto the Board, which is a major supplier and a substantial
shareholder of the company.

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY is currently the co-CEO of PROVE &
RUN, a limited company incorporated under the law of France. Mr.
PAGEZY served as the executive vice president of Gemalto, responsible
for corporate projects from 2007 to the 6 January 2014. Gemalto is a
company incorporated under the laws of Netherlands, whose shares
are listed and traded on New York Stock Exchange Euronext
Amsterdam and New York Stock Exchange Euronext Paris respectively.
Mr. PAGZY graduated from the Ecole Supérieure d'Electricité with a
Diploma in Engineering in July 1981 and from the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology with a Master of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering and Computer Science in June 1982. Saved as disclosed
herein, Mr. PAGEZY had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. TING Tao | (T#&—), aged 53, is a non-executive Director, and
joined the Group in 2013. He was first appointed as a Director on 4
July 2013 and was designated as a non-executive Director with effect
from 15 November 2013. Mr. TING Tao | was a board representative
nominated by BOCI Investment Limited (“BOCI Investment”) onto the
Board. He also acted as the Director of Goldpac Limited and Goldpac
Datacard from 2013 to 2014.

Mr. TING is currently the head of the private equity division of BOC
International Holdings Limited and is in charge of the private equity
investment and fund management business. Mr. TING received a
Master of Business Administration degree from the New York University
in the United States in 1993. Mr. TING had not been a director of any
other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Zk &) (also known as Mr. MAK Wing
Sum), aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director. He joined
the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director.

Mr. MAK currently has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Hong Kong Television Network Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1137), I.T Limited
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 999), Luk
Fook Holdings (International) Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 590) and Lai Fung Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1125). Mr. MAK is appointed
as a member of Hong Kong Housing Society on 28 May 2015 and as a
member of its audit committee and special committee on investment
on 8 September 2015 and 17 September 2015 respectively. Mr. MAK,
after working in Citibank for over 26 years, went into his retirement in
April 2012 where he last served as the head of markets and banking
for Citibank Hong Kong. Whilst at Citibank, he has held various senior
positions, managing the regional global asset management business
and financial control for North Asia.

Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto in Canada with a
Bachelor of Commerce degree in June 1976. He has been a Chartered
Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
since September 1979, a Chartered Professional Accountant of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants since November 2012
and currently also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Save as disclosed herein, Mr. MAK had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the
past three years.

Mr. ZHU Lijun, (583 ), aged 62, is an independent non-executive
Director. He joined the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEEM®

Mr. ZHU has been the vice president of China United Network
Communications Limited (FEIBi& MG BIERNODER AT (formerly
known as China Netcom (Group) Corporation Limited (47 B 483 (5 )
BBR7A7]) since 2006 till March 2014. He was also a representative of
the 10th National People’s Congress held in 2003.

Mr. ZHU received a Bachelor of Economics degree from the Jilin University (&
MAREZ) in July 1997, a Master of International Management degree
from the Australian National University in July 2004 and a Doctor of
Management degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
October 2008. Mr. ZHU had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (£2J#2), aged 65, is an independent non-
executive Director. He joined the Group on 15 November 2013, when
he was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. LIU has been a visiting professor at the department of management
science of the City University of Hong Kong since 2011 till now. Mr. LIU
served as the Director of the Center for Transport, Trade and Financial
Studies of the City University of Hong Kong from 2011 to December
2015 and has been appointed as the Chairman of the Academy of
International Transport, Trade and Service since 2012 till now.

Mr. LIU received a Master in Engineering degree in March 1982 from
Huazhong Engineering University ((£f8 T2B7%) (now known as
Huazhong University of Science & Technology (FEFRHTAEE)). He
received a Master of Science degree major in Engineering-Economic
Systems from Stanford University in the United States in June 1983 and
a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Industrial Engineering from
Pennsylvania State University in August 1986 in the United States. Mr.
LIU had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEEM®

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREERE
Name Gender Age Position
& 4 Bl Fir B 75
WU Si Qiang Male 43 Chief operating officer
R B oA 5 HEEEE
LI Yijin Female 45 Chief financial officer & Company Secretary
> 5 4 BERMBERARME
LI Jun Male 54 Chief technology officer
> = S BEEME

Mr. WU Si Qiang (& 258), aged 43, is the chief operating officer of
the Company, and joined the Group in 2001. He is primarily responsible
for the overall operation of the Group. Mr. WU has approximately 15
years of experience in the card industry. He has been the chief
operating officer of the Company since 2011. He was a manager of the
production division, vice general manager of the operation division,
general manger of the production management division of Goldpac
Limited from 2001 to 2004, 2004 to 2006 and 2009 to 2011
respectively and has been the chief operating officer of Goldpac Limited
since 2011. He also served as a manager of the procurement division of
Goldpac Limited since 2004. Mr. WU graduated from the Guangdong
Mechanics University (ER#EMERE) (now part of Guangdong
University of Technology (BE T KX2) with a Bachelor of
Mechatronics degree in July 1993. Mr. WU had not been a director of
any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years.

Ms. LI Yijin (=25 #), aged 45, is the chief financial officer of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is primarily responsible
for the management of the accounting and finance department of the
Group. Ms. LI has approximately 25 years of experience in the
accounting and financial reporting matters. She was the financial
controller of the Group from 2004 to 2012 and has been the chief
financial officer of the Group since 2012. She has also been the chief
financial officer and financial controller of both Goldpac Datacard and
Goldpac Limited since 2001.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEEM®

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. LI worked in Zhuhai S.E.Z. Willert
Electronics Ltd. (258 F|E F B R A 7)), and has worked as a financial
controller and assistant to marketing manager of Zhuhai International
Circuit Limited REBBEBREHEIZER /AT ) and has involved in
economic affairs of Zhuhai Jinhong Electricals Co., Ltd. GR/E&HLE T
EFEATR]) from 1996 to 2000, 1994 to 1996 and 1991 to 1993,
respectively. Ms. LI received an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong University of Science &
Technology in November 2012. Ms. LI has been a member of CPA
(Certified Public Accountants) Australia since October 2004 and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May 2013.
Ms. LI had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LI Jun (ZE), aged 54, is the chief technology officer of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2013. He is primarily responsible for
the management of the technical solutions department and R&D
department of the Group. Mr. LI has approximately 18 years of experience
in the technology related industry. He has been the chief technology
officer of the Company since January 2013. He has also been the chief
technology officer of both Goldpac Limited and Goldpac Datacard since
January 2013.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI joined Giesecke & Devrient GmbH as
engineer in 1997 and from 1999 to 2012 served as the director for
security equipment in Giesecke & Devrient (China) Information
Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. LI graduated from the Beijing University of
Posts and Telecommunications (b R EE £f%) with a degree in radio
communication and received a master degree in engineering from
Universitat-Gesamthochschule Paderborn in Germany and a master
certificate in project management from the George Washington
University through its program in Beijing in July 1983, June 1997 and
May 2005 respectively. Mr. LI had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin (Z25 ), aged 45, is the company secretary of the Group,
and joined the Group in 2001. She is primarily responsible for the
secretarial matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Senior Management” above for the biography of Ms.
LI.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no changes in
information of Directors required to be disclosed for the year ended 31
December 2015 pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Board hereby presents this Annual Report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 October 2004, the Company was
publicly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 4 December
2013. Primarily operated through its subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong
Kong, the Company is specialised in delivering payment system
platform, embedded software & secure products, personalisation
service, card-issuance system, multi-application terminal and customised
solutions, covering a wide business range of financial, social security,
healthcare, transportation, retails, mobile payment, identities and third-
party payment. The Company is the exclusive secure payment products
supplier in the PRC, which is certified by all six of the world-leading
credit card organisations of China UnionPay, VISA, MasterCard,
American Express, JCB and Diners’ Club.

As a global leading secure payment total solution supplier, the
Company is actively involved in drafting and formulating of industrial
standards and criterion. To drive the innovation by customers’
diversified demands and evolving front-line technologies, the Company
watches the cutting-edge technologies trends with the closest interests,
covering internet banking, mobile payment, loT, to reinforce the
Company’s leading industrial position and boost the whole industry’s
evolution. Motivated by the strong R&D aptitudes and affluent practical
experiences, the Company was actively involved in numerous significant
industrial events and projects, including first EMV projects in Hong
Kong and the PRC, first provincial social security card project, first
financial social security card project, first citizen card project and first
healthcare card project in the PRC. Committed to essential sustainable
development philosophies of delivering value and innovation, the
Company is fully engaged in promoting the wider and in-depth
application of smart secure payment technologies, with its leading
technologies, preeminent qualities and superior service, to provide
people worldwide with the safer, easier and more convenient payment
experience.

The principal activities of the Group for the year 2015 are set out in the

Note 7 to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 123 to page 125
of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year 2015 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive
Income of page 79 of this Annual Report.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK11 cents (equivalent
to approximately RMB9 cents) and special dividend of HK4 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB3 cents) per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: the final dividend was HK10
cents per ordinary share, equivalent to approximately RMB8 cents.
Special dividend was nil).

PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
2015, the material factors underlying its results and financial position
and details of the Group’s principal activities are provided in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 14 to page
25 of this Annual Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 19
May 2016, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 16 May 2016. The register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 17 May 2016 to Thursday, 19 May 2016,
both days inclusive, during which period, no transfer of Shares will be
registered.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend
and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share
Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at the above
address for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 3 June 2016. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 6
June 2016 to Wednesday, 8 June 2016, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. Subject to
shareholders’ approval of the proposed dividends at the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 19 May 2016, the
dividends will be paid on Thursday, 23 June 2016 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at
the close of business on Wednesday, 8 June 2016.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent to the payment solutions
business and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarized below.

(i) The financial performance of the Group
depends on the future growth of the
consumer financial services industry and
trends

As the Group relies on financial institutions, government agencies
(such as social security, public health and transportation agencies)
and other organisations that issue financial cards as its customers
or potential customers, the financial performance of the Group
depends on the future growth of the consumer financial services
industry and trends in that industry towards greater outsourcing
of certain functions such as the production and personalisation of
financial cards. The consumer financial services industry is
characterised by rapid launches of new products and services,
continuous technological advancement, evolving industry
standards and changing customer needs, all of which translate to
shorter life cycles for new products and services. Organisations
that issue financial cards, such as the Group’s customers, may
face difficulty in anticipating changes in consumer tastes,
preferences and requirements and designing financial products to
meet such changes, which could lead to a lower demand for
financial cards and in turn decrease these organisations’ demand
for the products and services, which may adversely affect the
financial results of the Group.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(ii) As a supplier to financial institutions and

government agencies, the Group is subject
to rigorous industry standards and/or
government regulations

Many of the industry organisations, government regulatory
agencies and other bodies to which the Group’s customers
belong or are subject to have issued their own sets of standards
and criteria relating to the facilities and products of payment
solutions manufacturers and providers, which the Group must
satisfy in order to be eligible to supply products and services to
these customers. For example, as required by the Group’s
financial institution customers, the Group has obtained
certifications from all six of the leading worldwide payment card
organisations (VISA, MasterCard, American Express, China
UnionPay, JCB, and Diners Club) with respect to the Group's card
manufacturing and personalisation services. To maintain such
certifications, the Group is subject to rigorous periodic audits by
these payment card organisations to review the Group's
compliance with their standards and criteria. The Group makes
significant investments in order to meet these standards and
criteria, which vary depending on the organisation or body,
including investments required to satisfy changes adopted from
time to time by these organisations and bodies in their respective
standards and criteria. Further investments to meet these
standards and criteria may be costly, and if the Group is unable
to continue to meet these standards and criteria, the Group may
become ineligible to provide products and services that have
constituted in the past an important part of the Group’s revenue
and profitability.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

(iii) The Group faces significant competition in

42

each of the markets in which it operates,
which could affect its profitability

The Group's market position depends upon its ability to anticipate
and proactively deal with changes in economic and market
conditions and evolving industry trends, as well as the following
factors: introduction of new or superior products and services or
more advanced technologies, adoption of more flexible pricing
strategies by the Group’s competitors and changes in customers’
needs and preferences. The Group cannot assure that its current
or potential competitors will not produce the same or similar
products or products of a better quality and/or provide similar or
higher quality services at the same or lower prices than the prices
at which the Group’s products and services are provided.

The Group's competitors may also react more quickly to new or
emerging technologies or changes in customer preferences. In
addition, the Group may face greater than expected downward
pricing pressure as a result of possible price competition by
competitors seeking to stimulate demand in order to maintain or
increase market share. Such competition could adversely affect
the Group’s results of operations and business prospects. Any
adverse changes in the Group’s competitive environment could
cause a reduction in the sales quantity, its market share, or the
sales price of its products, which would lower the Group's
profitability. As a supplier to some of the major financial
institutions in China, the Group’s performance and profitability
may be adversely affected if its customers, when faced with
operational difficulties and decreasing profit margins, seek to
demand more favourable trading terms from the Group in
relation to price and credit period. The Group’s performance and
profitability will also be adversely affected if any of its customers
faces cost control or cash flow problems due to such operational
difficulties.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(iv) Fluctuations in consumer spending and

(v)

financial services in the PRC may affect the
Group's business and financial performance

During the past few years, the Group derived most of the Group’s
revenue from operations in the PRC. The Group’s sales and
growth are dependent on consumer spending and consumer
banking, which in turn depend on continued improvement of
macroeconomic conditions, in Asia generally but in the PRC in
particular. There are many factors affecting the level of consumer
spending and consumer banking, including but not limited to,
interest rates, currency exchange rates, recession, inflation,
deflation, political uncertainty, taxation, stock market
performance, unemployment levels and general consumer
confidence. In addition, the Group believes that the Group's
historical growth rates were largely dependent on the general
growth of the PRC economy. The Group can provide no
assurance that the PRC economy will continue to grow at
historical rates, or at all, and any slowdowns or declines in the
PRC economy or consumer spending or consumer banking may
adversely affect the Group's business, financial condition, results
of operations and growth prospects.

Adverse changes in the PRC economigc,
political and social conditions as well as laws
and government policies, may adversely
affect the Group’s business, financial
condition, results of operations and growth
prospects

The economic, political and social conditions in the PRC differ
from those in more developed countries in many respects,
including structure, government involvement, level of
development, growth rate, control of foreign exchange, capital
reinvestment, allocation of resources, rate of inflation and trade
balance position. Before the adoption of its reform and opening
up policies in 1978, the PRC was primarily a planned economy. In
recent years, the PRC government has been reforming the PRC
economic system and government structure. For example, the
PRC government has implemented economic reform and
measures emphasising the utilisation of market forces in the
development of the PRC economy in the past three decades.
These reforms have resulted in significant economic growth and

(iv)

(v)
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH
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social prospects. Economic reform measures, however, may be
adjusted, modified or applied inconsistently from industry to
industry or across different regions of the country. The Group
cannot predict whether the resulting changes will have any
adverse effect on the Group's current or future business, financial
condition or results of operations. Despite these economic
reforms and measures, the PRC government continues to play a
significant role in regulating industrial development, allocation of
natural and other resources, production, pricing and management
of currency, and there can be no assurance that the PRC
government will continue to pursue a policy of economic reform
or that the direction of reform will continue to be market friendly.

The Group's ability to successfully expand its business operations
in the PRC depends on a number of factors, including macro-
economic and other market conditions, and credit availability
from lending institutions. Stricter credit or lending policies in the
PRC may affect the Group’s customers’ consumer credit or
consumer banking business, and may also affect the Group's
ability to obtain external financing, which may reduce its ability to
implement its expansion strategies. The Group cannot assure that
the PRC government will not implement any additional measures
to tighten credit or lending standards, or that, if any such
measure is implemented, it will not adversely affect the Group's
future results of operations or profitability. Demand for the
Group’s goods and services and its business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected by the
following factors:

o political instability or changes in social conditions of the
PRC;

. changes in laws, regulations, and administrative directives
or the interpretation thereof;

o measures which may be introduced to control inflation or
deflation; and

o changes in the rate or method of taxation.

These factors are affected by a number of variables which are
beyond the Group's control.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(i)

(ii)

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group and
the Group regards the personal development of its employees as
highly important. The Group wants to continue to be an
attractive employer for committed employees.

The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement of
their skills. The Group provides pre-employment and on-the-job
training and development opportunities to its staff members. The
training programs cover areas such as managerial skills, sales and
production, customer services, quality control, workplace ethics
and training of other areas relevant to the industry. In addition,
the Group seriously consider all those valuable feedback from its
employees for enhancing workplace productivity and harmony.

Generally, a salary review is conducted annually. Aside from basic
remuneration, the Group makes contributions towards employee
mandatory social security funds, pensions, work-related injury
insurance, maternity insurance and medical and unemployment
insurance in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations
of the PRC. The Group also provides full coverage of housing
provident fund contributions as required by local regulations in
the PRC. In addition, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) on 11 December 2015, to
recognize and motivate the contribution of the employees and
attract suitable personnel for the long-term growth and further
strategic expansion of the Group. For the year ended 31
December 2015, no Shares have been granted or agreed to be
granted to any selected participants of the Share Award Scheme.

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of its suppliers and takes great care to ensure that they
share the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. The Group
carefully selects its suppliers and require them to satisfy certain
assessment criteria including track record, experience, financial
strength, reputation, products qualities and quality control
effectiveness. The Group also requires its suppliers to comply with
the Group’s anti-bribery policy.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

(iii) Clients

The Group is committed to maintain and develop its diversified
clients’ portfolio consisting of the governmental organizations,
world-leading financial institutions, transportations projects and
multinational companies. The Group maximizes client value by
offering professional and effective operation model and
innovative and differentiated products and services, to intensify
the interaction and viscosity between clients and the Group and
enhances the client experience.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving
electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. The Group also requires its suppliers to operate in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules.

As a leader in the industry, the Group has also devoted itself to social
and environmental agendas and undertook various eco-protection
responsibilities through product innovation. During the year 2015, the
Group developed a genuinely eco-friendly card. This new product is
valuable in helping the smart card industry to reduce its impact on the
environment and also represents a viable solution for clients looking to
meet their social and environmental responsibilities.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong while the Company itself is
listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
During the year 2015, the Group have complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year 2015 are set out in Note 40 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements on page 162 of this Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year 2015 are set out in Note 15 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements on page 136 of this Annual Report.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans are set out in Note 29 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements on page 147 of this Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year 2015 are set out in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 149 to 150 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the relevant rules of Hong Kong and PRC, the Company’s
reserves available for the distribution to the shareholders as at 31
December 2015 amounted to RMB15.6 million (31 December 2014:
RMB35.9 million).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE PAST 5 YEARS

The turnover, assets and liabilities of the past 5 years of the Group are
set out in the Financial Summary on page 164 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

The details of the Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) and the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 15 November 2013, and the
Share Award Scheme adopted by the Company on 11 December 2015
are set out in Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on
pages 151 to 155 of this Annual Report.

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

48

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
written resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on
15 November 2013 for the primary purpose of recognising the
contribution of certain employees and directors made or may
have made to the growth of the Group and/or the listing of the
Group on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and will expire
on 3 December 2019.

At 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 31,061,000. The aforesaid
number of shares represents 3.7% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this Annual Report.

Options granted must be taken up on 19 November 2013, upon
payment of HK$1.0 by the grantee. All the options under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme were granted on 19 November 2013.
The exercise price of each Pre-IPO share option is HK$2.71 per
share of the Company.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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The Pre-IPO share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme of the Company may be exercised by each

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

grantee in the following manner:

Vesting Period
B8

Exercise period

T

EEE®REHE

ZAN/NSSII= /YN ST |
PR T HBE R AR %S A BRED
AN AR IAT 77 A 17 (2 B X
1

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

AITEBERENEAEDL

From 19 November 2013 to
3 December 2014

2013F 11 A19H =
2014912 A3H

From 19 November 2013 to
3 December 2015

201311 A19B &
2015412 A3 H

From 19 November 2013 to
3 December 2016

201311 A19B &
2016412 A3 H

From 19 November 2013 to
3 December 2017

201311 A19B &
2017412 A3 H

From 19 November 2013 to
3 December 2018

2013F 11 H198 &
201812 A3H

From 4 December 2014 to
3 December 2019

201412 H48 %
2019 12 A3H

From 4 December 2015 to
3 December 2019

2015F 12 A4H %
2019412 A3 H

From 4 December 2016 to
3 December 2019

201612 A4HZ
201912 A3 H

From 4 December 2017 to
3 December 2019

2017F 12 A4H %
2019412 A3 H

From 4 December 2018 to
3 December 2019

2018F 12 H4B &
2019412 A3H

Up to 20% of the options granted to such grantee
(rounded down to the nearest whole number)
FTEBERENRZ20% (M THAZREEEON

BE)

Up to 40% of the options granted to such grantee
less the options exercised (rounded down to the
nearest whole number)

FriERs igtE Of B TR A B AR ) M & £ 40%
(MTRABEEEINER)

Up to 60% of the options granted to such grantee
less the options exercised (rounded down to the
nearest whole number)

R CRE BT R EARRE) & Z60%
(MTHABREHEINER)

Up to 80% of the options granted to such grantee
less the options exercised (rounded down to the
nearest whole number)

FrEmARE CRE BT EEARRE) & Z80%
(ATHABREHEINER)

Such number of unexercised options granted to
such grantee

P B 1R AR 18 R 7T 158 1) P A4
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share TEXHEEENREEMBEAE AN A
options held by directors and employees and movements in such B S AR K BN B E 2015 12 A 31
holding during the twelve months ended 31 December 2015: HiE+Z@EABRNEEE :
For the twelve months ended 31 December 2015 BZE2015F 1283181+ =EA

As at As at
Name 1 January 2015 Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31 December 2015
£ B M2015F1A81H 217 [EE=:] B%%% M2015%F12831H
Directors
=3
Mr. LU Run Ting 3,700,000 740,000 — — 2,960,000
Mr. HOU Ping 1,500,000 300,000 — — 1,200,000
BEEEE
Mr. LU Runyi 2,000,000 400,000 — — 1,600,000
[E A 5 A4
Mr. LU Xiaozhong 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
EREE
Senior management
EREERRE
In aggregate 9,500,000 200,000 — — 9,300,000
NE

=P

Other employees

Hitfg &

In aggregate 17,593,000 2,144,000 — 448,000 15,001,000
& H#

Total 35,293,000 3,784,000 — 448,000 31,061,000
ot
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(b)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 were calculated at RMB69,935,000
(equivalent to HK$88,954,000) using the Binominal Option
Pricing pricing model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price HK$4.52
Exercise price HK$2.71
Expected life 6 years
Expected volatility 46.9963%
Expected dividend yield 1.0822%
Risk-free interest rate 1.2426%
Fair value per option HK$2.4250 to

HK$2.4791

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the selected comparable comprises in the same industry. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB 16,868,000 (2014:
RMB30,186,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015 in
relation to share options granted by the Company.

Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme, approved by the
shareholders’ resolution passed on 15 November 2013, are
substantially the same as the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme except that:

(i) The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue at the date of listing of the Shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange;

(i) The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer to grant shall
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of offer
to grant; and

(b)

CHEERERERAA
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RE E2013F12A3IBZ2FER
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NP TEEANFELAARK
69,935,000 7T (3T & /8 ¥ £988,954,000
7o) RAERX T -

I B B4 52T
TR 2717
JEEEE R 6
TEHR R IR 46.9963%
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4 [ g ) R 1.2426%
BhERES W2 4250 &

AnfEE B 4791 7T
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B TERSRITARZRFZEN R
EHEETHE -

HE2015F12A31HIEZEE - &K
EERARFBREEREARA L A
A R #16,868,0007T (2014F & A R
#30,186,0007T) °

BB MRSt &

R2013%F 11 B15H BB ERZE
FETHLER BT S B BEE R A
BRAMEERERES S NEBHE
& LA TR BR O

) ERERDZARHOEISHE
BARNBEBIMEE 2 BH
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

(@

52

(i)  The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company at their discretion and will not be lower than the
higher of: (a) the closing price of the ordinary Shares on the
Stock Exchange at the offer date, which must be a trading
day; (b) the average closing price of the ordinary Shares on
the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the offer date; (c) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.

For the year ended at 31 December 2015, no option had been
granted by the Board pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Assuming all options under the Share Option Scheme have been
granted, the total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme shall be 80,000,000, representing
approximately 9.6% of the Company’s issued share capital as at
the date of the Company’s 2015 Annual Report.

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 30
November 2015 (the “Adoption Date”) with a duration of 15
years commencing from 11 December 2015. The objectives of
the Share Award Scheme are to (i) align the interests of any
employee, adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, client or supplier
of any member of the Group whom the directors in their sole
discretion consider may contribute or have contributed to the
Group (the “Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate the
contribution of the Participants and to provide incentives in
retaining the Participants for future operation and development
of the Group; and (jii) attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited (the
“Trustee”) to administer and hold the Shares before they are
vested and transferred to the selected Participants. The Trustee
purchases the Shares being awarded from the open market with
funds provided by the Company by way of contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 27,000 ordinary
Shares have been acquired at an aggregate cost of HK$91,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB74,000). As of 31 December
2015, no Shares have been granted or agreed to be granted to
any selected Participants.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year 2015 and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LU Xiaozhong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY
Mr. TING Tao |

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Mr. ZHU Lijun
Mr. LIU John Jianhua

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Details of the Directors’ profiles are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 26 to 37 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the
Company during the year 2015 and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou) Limited
Mr. LIU Xuhui

EESEHREME

=2

REFFEARERRED L RAIES
=2

HITES

EEESE (EE)

BFEEE

EEEEE

ENEEAE

FHITES

Christophe Jacques PAGEZY 4t 4
TiE—%H&E
BIUFHITES

KRR E
RYERE
BEELE

%gﬁnjﬂj

EENRABEREAFERS
JVEZIELERRAEREIES

o W
N
(@)}
m
Y

MELARES

R201I5FEFERRERAREB L KRR Z
MEARZEEWM T

EHEBBERLF
EEELE
=L
EBRtE

EHREERAA
EFELLE
i
EBREE

EMNTEREEERFERAA
B RESL L

CHEERERREBRRE —T-RFFR 53

Corporate
Information

2015 F KRER

2015 Major Events

Chairman’s
Statement

Directors and Senior

G2
25
s b
Q9
g=
£a

Financial Statements
BB ®E

Financial
Highlights

BBRE

Management Discussion
and Analysis

Management

EER

Corporate Governance
Report

EEH

EREIAWRDN EERE

REERE

=

EEERE

EERRE



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years, which shall be terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the
executive Director or the Company. Each of non-executive Directors has
signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three
years. Each of independent non-executive directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years. The
appointment of each Director is subject to the provisions of
appointment and retirement of directors under the Articles of
Association of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. LU Run
Ting, Mr. LU Runyi and Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY retired from
the Board and were re-elected in the Annual General Meeting on 28
May 2014. Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. LU Xiaozhong and Mr. TING Tao |
retired from the Board and were re-elected in the Annual General
Meeting on 21 May 2015. Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. ZHU Lijun
and Mr. LIU John Jianhua will retire from the Board at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting on 19 May 2016, while Mr. MAK Wing Sum
Alvin, Mr. ZHU Lijun and Mr. LIU John Jianhua will offer themselves for
re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. ZHU Lijun
and Mr. LIU John Jianhua, the confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has duly reviewed the confirmation of independence of each of these
Directors. The Company considers that the independent non-executive
Directors had been independent from the date of their appointment to
31 December 2015 and remain independent as at the date of this
Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors
and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares of equity
derivatives and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (all within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO") disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules were detailed below:

Interests in Shares

EEE®REHE

EESNEEHATENER

REE2015F12A31HIEZFE  EFM
BEATEEAR REMEB LR (TE
RESRBEKRA(EBHFRBEEN])E
XVER) 2 E B 5 - MR (D K EH 2 1
WmARE AR ELT

R 42 8 28

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held®” Company (%)
i A=A R
EENE HEHE TSRt S 4=R B E D (%)
Mr. LU Run Ting Interest of Controlled Corporation 355,019,422 Shares (L) 42.59%
BEEELE(EE) PR A B R 355,019,422 % (L)
Beneficial owner @ 3,700,000 Shares (L) 0.44%
2w A? 3,700,000 % (L)
Mr. HOU Ping Beneficial owner © 1,500,000 Shares (L) 0.18%
& AP 1,500,000 % (L)
Mr. LU Runyi Beneficial owner ¢ 4,120,000 Shares (L) 0.49%
EHe ZmA@ 4,120,000% (L)
Mr. LU Xiaozhong Beneficial owner 1,000,000 Shares (L) 0.12%
B/ A 1,000,000 % (L)

™ The letter “L" denotes the Directors’ long position in the Shares or the relevant

associated corporation.

@ Mr. LU Run Ting (“Chairman LU")’s interests are consisted of: (i) 2,960,000
Shares to be issued subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, and (ii) 740,000 Shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme exercised on 29 July 2015.

®  Mr. HOU Ping’s interests are consisted of: (i) 1,200,000 Shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme; and (i)
300,000 Shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme exercised on 25 August 2015.

@ Mr. LU Runyi’s interests are consisted of: (i) 1,600,000 Shares to be issued
subject to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme; (i) 2,120,000
Shares transferred from GIHL (being a controlling shareholder of the Company
and wholly-owned by Chairman LU) on 20 March 2015; and (iii) 400,000 Shares
issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme exercised on
25 August 2015.

© Shares which are subject to options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

O LI R B FRAR R 7] 5 7 B 69 16 1 % (B SR 1
AT IE B AIIF R

@ BEHEEZEFE(EERE)ZEDEENERAEHE
BEREREL Z T A %778 192,960,000 %
(i)R2015F 7 F29A BBITIEE XN AHZEE
B IR 1 51 2] ZE 7T AR 17 740,000 % °

O RBIEECEREITOERLFAEETER
HEAT &) T A] & 77 AR 19 1,200,000 8% (ii) ;R 2015 4F
8A25HBRITIEE N AFAEEFERE 2
778 17 300,000 f% °

@ EEEAEZESERE  (BEARHRENE
AR{EET 2] A] # 77 A 17 1,600,000 8% (i) 11 2015
FIF20H8 ZER L IBEBE (KR B2 HR
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance, to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during
or at the year ended 31 December 2015.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, for the year ended 31
December 2015, no Director had declared interests in any entity which
competes, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and Senior Management in respect of certain liabilities arising
out of corporate activities. As required by Section 470(1) and (2) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), it is confirmed that the permitted
indemnity provision mentioned above is/was in force for the benefit of
the Directors/then Directors when the Directors’ Report prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance; and has been in force throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2015, respectively. Pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association, subject to the provisions of the
Companies Ordinance, every Director or other officer or auditor may be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability, loss
or expenditure incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether
civil or criminal, which relate to anything done or omitted to be done
or alleged to have been done or omitted to be done by him as an
officer or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given in his
favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection with any
application in which relief is granted to him by the court from liability in
respect of any such act or omission.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contacts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year 2015.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors for the year 2015 are set out in Note
11 to the Consolidated Statements on pages 129 to 130 of this Annual
Report.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company of
his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to the
Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the
Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under
the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the
controlling shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications
and competence of individual employees and are reviewed by the
remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes and one share
award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
employees. Details of these schemes are set out in the paragraph
headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 32 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year 2015.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ESEHE@E

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN

SHARE CAPITAL

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to the SFO recorded
that, as at 31 December 2015, the following persons and corporations
had interests in the shares or underlying shares in the Company:

BERQMKBELZLBEIEO MR ZZE
SO 20159128318 TAA+TMA
BEEAANRNRRMDABERGD 2

Approximate
shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held” percentage
" £ EEME EsEE ¥ g=R BAERAES
Mr. LU Run Ting Interest of Controlled Corporation®® 355,019,422 Shares (L) 42.59%
EFELE X E A B e a0 355,019,422 B (L)
Beneficial owner®® 3,700,000 Shares (L) 0.44%
B A 3,700,000 (L)
Ms. ZHANG Jian® Family 358,719,422 Shares (L) 43.03%
SR+ ENi 358,719,422 & (L)
Gemalto® Interest of Controlled Corporation 152,931,181 Shares (L) 18.34%
SR E s 152,931,181 % (L)
Areo Holdings Limited Interest of Controlled Corporation 41,723,000 Shares (L) 5.00%

("Areo")® REGEE R 41,723,000 8% (L)
Notes: Bfaz -
(1) The letter “ L” denotes a person’s long position in the Shares or shares of the (1) [LIXFKBEAA LR G LA EFHIFEHLE X

@)

3)

)

©)

58

relevant Group member.

The disclosed interest represents (i) the interest in the Company held by GIHL,
which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU is deemed to
be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO, and (i)
Shares to be issued upon exercise of options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and Shares issued pursuant to Pre-IPO share options exercised on 29
July 2015.

Ms. ZHANG Jian, the spouse of Chairman LU, is deemed to be interested in
Chairman LU'’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by Gemplus
International S.A. (GISA), which is wholly-owned by Gemalto, whose shares are
listed and traded on the NYSE Euronext Amsterdam and NYSE Euronext Paris.
Therefore, Gemalto is deemed to be interested in GISA’s interest in the Company
by virtue of the SFO.

Based on the Disclosure of Interests notices filed on 20 August 2015, the
disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by ORCHID ASIA
VI, LP. and ORCHID ASIA V CO-INVESTMENT, LIMITED. ORCHID ASIA VI, LP. is
indirectly wholly owned by Areo while ORCHID ASIA V CO-INVESTMENT,
LIMITED is directly wholly owned by Areo. Accordingly, Areo is deemed to be
interested in the interest in the Company held by ORCHID ASIA VI, LP. and
ORCHID ASIA V/ CO-INVESTMENT, LIMITED by virtue of the SFO. In addition, Ms.
LAM Lai Ming and Mr. LI Gabriel are deemed to be interested in the Company
by virtue of the SFO through Areo. To the best knowledge of the Company,
each of Ms. LAM Lai Ming and Mr. LI Gabriel is an independent third party.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company purchased its
ordinary shares listed on the Stock Exchange as follows:

EESEHREME

REZ2015F12A31BIEZFE » KA A
REBZXTEBARRZBERMOT

Aggregate

consideration

No. of Price per share (exclusive of

ordinary BRERK transaction

Month B #% Shares Highest Lowest cost)
HESG

ZER (REBEXS

£ g=] BE &K ER)

HK$ HK$ HK$'000

B & BT T

February 2015 201592 A 580,000 4.89 4.80 2,817
March 2015 201543 A 244,000 3.96 3.85 955
W77 2

The aforesaid ordinary Shares purchased were cancelled.

Except for the above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Board believes that the above share purchase is in the best interests
of the Company and the Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for 16.79% (2014: 23.72%) and 42.53% (2014: 48.90%),
respectively, of the Group's total turnover from continuing operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers
accounted for 55.50% (2014: 49.02%) and 73.53% (2014: 74.51%),
respectively, of the Group's total purchases from suppliers.

PR EBENEE 2REEH -

B btz 4h e A E2015F12 8318 1k
Z2EE TEARAAKETMAEERRE
E HESBEBOAQNR LTES-

EEZEHENLBERRARMNTEARQA
M REBEREM -

TEEFRHER

MAEESGARNAARFNEERES
FIEAEEREFESCEETNKRAL
%16.79% (2014 4 : 23.72%) K 42.53%
(20144 : 48.90%) °

MAEESFAREARETNHRKEZ
ot AEERHERNBHERE
55.50% (2014 4F : 49.02%) K 73.53% (2014
£ :7451%) °
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

Mr. PAGEZY was a board representative nominated by Gemalto onto
the Board, which is a major supplier and a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Certain Bank of China entities in the PRC are major customers of the
Company, whose ultimate holding company is Bank of China Limited,
which is also the ultimate holding company of BOCI Investment, a
substantial shareholder of the Company until 12 November 2014. Mr.
TING Tao |, one of the non-executive Directors was a board
representative nominated by BOCI Investment onto the Board.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates or
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Shares in issue) had interests in the above
suppliers or customers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following related party transactions entered into during the year
ended 31 December 2015 constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Group under the Listing Rules and are required to
be disclosed in this Annual Report in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Gemalto

Gemalto is a substantial shareholder of the Company holding
approximately 18.34% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this
Annual Report, and thus a connected person of the Company. Each of
Gemalto Taiwan Co., Ltd., Gemalto Pte. Ltd., Shanghai Axalto IC Card
Technologies Co., Ltd. and Gemalto (Shanghai) (the “Gemalto Entities”)
is a subsidiary of Gemalto, and thus a connected person of the
Company.

During the six years ended 31 December 2015, the Group purchased
certain microprocessor composed of an electronic component
embedding a card operating system, also known as smart card chips,
from certain Gemalto Entities. On 15 November 2013, a module supply
agreement was entered into between Gemalto and the Company,
Goldpac Limited and Goldpac Datacard (the “Module Supply
Agreement”), pursuant to which Gemalto agreed to supply and the
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Group agreed to purchase from Gemalto or its affiliates each year not
less than 75% of the smart card chips required by the Group to the
extent the smart card chips are available from the product list of
Gemalto, for a term commencing from the date of listing of the
Company and ending on 31 December 2015. If the smart card chips on
the product list of Gemalto does not contain the smart card chips that
the Group requires, or the Group does not require any smart card chip
at all, there is no requirement to purchase from Gemalto or its affiliates.
As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
Rule 14A.10 of the Listing Rules) in respect of the proposed annual
caps for the module supply under the Module Supply Agreement for
the three years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively,
exceed 5% and more than HK$10,000 thousand, the transactions
under the Module Supply Agreement constitute non-exempt continuing
connected transactions and should be subject to the reporting,
announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rules 14A.45 to 14A.48 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group purchased smart
card chips from Gemalto and its affiliates in the amount of
RMB618,835 thousand, which was within the annual cap of
RMB750,000 thousand approved by the Stock Exchange for the waiver
from strict compliance with the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

As approved by the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company on
25 February 2016, the Mutual Supply Agreement (“Mutual Supply
Agreement”) had been entered into among the Company, Goldpac
Datacard, Goldpac Limited and Gemalto, pursuant to which, Gemalto
will supply to the Group with and the Group agreed to purchase from
Gemalto the Gemalto IC Chips. The Mutual Supply Agreement will be
for a term of three years taking effect from 1 January 2016 and ending
on 31 December 2018.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
Rule 14A.10 of the Listing Rules) in respect of the proposed annual
caps for the Gemalto IC Chips supply under the Mutual Supply
Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018, respectively, exceed 5% and more than HK$10,000 thousand,
the Gemalto IC Chips supply transactions under the Mutual Supply
Agreement constitute non-exempt continuing connected transactions
and will be subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Rules 14A.45
to 14A.48 of the Listing Rules. On 14 January 2016, the Company
released the Announcement of Continuing Connected Transactions. At
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

the Extraordinary General Meeting on 25 February 2016, the
Independent Shareholders had approved (i) the Mutual Supply
Agreement and the supply of Gemalto IC Chips from Gemalto to the
Goldpac Entities as contemplated thereunder; and (ii) the proposed
annual caps for each of the three years ending 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018, respectively for the supply of Gemalto IC Chips from
Gemalto to the Goldpac Entities as contemplated under the Mutual
Supply Agreement.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Auditor”), the auditor of the
Company, reviewed the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the Auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The Auditor has issued a review report to the board and confirmed that
for the year 2015:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

(2)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(3) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and

(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out above, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the maximum
aggregate annual value disclosed in the Prospectus of the
Company in respect of each of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the continuing
connected transactions arising from the supply agreement with
Gemalto during the year ended 31 December 2015 and confirmed that
the transactions were:

i. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

ii. on normal commercial terms; and
ii. in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that has publicly available to the Company and
to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float permitted under the
Listing Rules since the Listing until the date of this Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31 December 2015, no material events have occurred.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEEREH

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on 19 May 2016.

On behalf of the Board

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good corporate
governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year under review, the
Company has complied with all the Code Provisions as set out in the
CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year 2015.

Specific enquiry was made with all the Directors and the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has also established written guidelines as stringent as the
Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions of employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of
non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERTE @

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. Below is the list of Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. HOU Ping (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LU Runyi (Senior Vice President)

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (Senior Vice President)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY
(Member of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. TING Tao | (Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Members of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Mr. ZHU Lijun (Members of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee)

Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Members of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26 to 37 of this
Annual Report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26 to 37 of this
Annual Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr.
LU Run Ting and Mr. HOU Ping respectively. The Chairman provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and
leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the
Company’s business development and daily management and
operations generally.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all times had
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a term of three years and is
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board takes
decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from
each Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERTE @

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as Directors of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company.

Every newly-appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on his first appointment to the Board to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’'s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, each Director has read
books/journals or attended relevant training to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities.

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees are posted on the Company's website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each board committee of the Company
are independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 2 to 4 of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to the
Audit Committee for performing the functions set out in the Code
Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results and
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERTE @

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and annual
financial results and reports in respect of the year ended 31 December
2015 and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
work and appointment of external auditors, connected transactions,
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties, the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report. The Audit Committee comprises three
members, namely, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of Audit
Committee), Mr. ZHU Lijun and Mr. LIU John Jianhua.

The Audit Committee also met with the external Auditor twice without
the presence of the executive Directors.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration of the senior
management is listed as below by band:

B 48 51

Band of remuneration

EnLZEBeC ARAMAEHE  UEMHPH
MEETBEESE  WREZE2015F12 A31
Btz FENRE  URhEBEHEREM
BHRERF AIEEMERERER I
BN EENITIESHE BESS -

BERZHRF ARLEERBERMNME
Pl - EFEMSREEABHINFE TR

ERRE ARREHERERBERETHOR
RMEH REFURE@EERINSE
B RRBTEREREANULRRERE
AHRMEANBESFEARB - BRLEE
M=K EBAK BEXRELE(BERE
BgXF) KRUBLEEMBIEELL -

%@ééﬁfﬁﬁﬁiﬂ??%?ﬁkffﬂﬂiiﬂ? :
EEIMNEZBAET T MRS

& 19 r A

NEZE2015F 1283182 EE SR E
BENFIRMEYROT

ERERE

Number of person

AE

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 ¥ =

Further details of the remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive and

Employees are set out in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration adjustment principle of all employees as a whole, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration adjustment
principle of all employees as a whole, the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and other related matters. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. LIU John Jianhua
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee), Mr. TING Tao | and Mr. MAK
Wing Sum Alvin.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the board composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures
for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

In assessing the board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience. The Nomination Committee
would review the Board Diversity Policy at least annually and discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERTE @

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s gender, age,
character, qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant
criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve
board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to
the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and to consider the qualifications of the retiring
Directors standing for election at the annual general meeting. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained. The Nomination Committee
comprises five members, namely, Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman of
Nomination Committee), Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY, Mr. MAK
Wing Sum Alvin, Mr. ZHU Lijun and Mr. LIU John Jianhua.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Yijin. Details of the
biography of the company secretary of the Company are set out in the
section headed "Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual
Report. Ms. Li confirmed that she took no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in the year ended 31 December 2015 as
required by the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE @)

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EERZESEHRENHE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS 48

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and board & EHZLXEANTREE2015F12 A 31
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held HIt?EERETHESS 2293
during the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in the table below: kIR AFRKReNE Bl NRAR

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY EBRE
Annual
General
Nomination Remuneration Audit Meeting

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee BREF
ESHE ESe REZE® FHZE® EKEae |
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. LU Run Ting 4/4 171 N/A N/A 171
Mr. HOU Ping 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171
B FEE
Mr. LU Runyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
EEhtE
Mr. LU Xiaozhong 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
BN BE A
Non-executive Directors
FHITES
Mr. Christophe Jacques PAGEZY 4/4 11 N/A N/A 11
Christophe Jacques PAGEZY ¢ 4
Mr. TING Tao | 3/4 N/A 11 N/A 11
TE—KE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin 4/4 1/ 11 2/2 11
KR E
Mr. ZHU Lijun 4/4 11 N/A 2/2 11
KRB RAE
Mr. LIU John Jianhua 4/4 11 11 2/2 11
BIZELE

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings K 7 E#HEMEE S &% - N 2015 L/ 7§
with the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive M IEHTEF (RIEBLIIERTES)AH
Directors) without the presence of Executive Directors during the year TR AHITESHEN S -

2015.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2015.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 78 of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’'s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to HK$1,680,000 and
HK$785,742 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2015
is set out below:

EERMBHRROBE

EEMABAHNBRYUARAEZ2015F
NRANBLEZFEFBRERNBE

FFEUFABEAEBTRLESARAR
BB N EH AN B LR
EATHEEE -

AR AR B ZBME M B RRERBE
MRAENAFRZBLZBEREET7
£78E

BB ET Y BN €

S FARBINEZEAEBEE2015F
ANNBIEZFENZERE & IEZE
R 2 B 5 5l &7 # 1,680,000 7T H 7 #
785,742 7T °

TNFARARARINEZEMEHEER T2
SHEITAEBE E2015F12A318 12 &
B8R R IEZE R 2 B € &5 4T 40
—|T:

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category Bk 7% & 5 e ENER

HK$

&

Audit Services % BIR 1% 1,680,000
Non-audit Services IEZH RS

— Interim review — R Hi 2R 6] 380,000

— Others —H A 405,742

2,465,742
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure the Company
maintains a sound and effective internal control system. The Group’s
internal control system is designed to safeguard assets against
misappropriation and unauthorized disposition and to manage
operational risks. Review of the Group’s internal controls covering
major financial, operational and compliance controls, has been done on
a systematic basis. No major issue but areas for improvement have
been identified. The Board and the Audit Committee considered that
the key areas of the Group's internal control systems are reasonably
implemented.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition of
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings or by such shareholder(s) who made the requisition (as the
case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and 568 respectively of the
Companies Ordinance. The general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting must be stated in the request. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the Companies
Ordinance for convening a general meeting.

Right to Circulate Resolution at Annual General
Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s)
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders;
or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be) who have a right to
vote at the relevant Annual General Meeting, may request to circulate
a resolution to be moved at an Annual General Meeting. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Companies Ordinance for circulating a resolution for Annual General
Meeting.

TEERKRE (A

BB BE 4

EEeRAHEHBRARAESR2ANA
MEZRGHET AEENABLEEZR
BROREREETEWTERA RRER
BEENAREEEERRM R - ANEH
EERGUMRNIENG CERARE
BETRAROANMEZE - HEHREKR
FECECENFRESTE - EFSNE
REEEARAEECAEERAIEE
R EZRRD

B RER

RREBRROEZMNEN  REAE L&
HEZBIYFANHRBBLRER &
RENEENERE -FBEERRAS LR
HERBRMEB EMRAETRER
FORBERENEEARRERERRE
NGIE LRI R S YN

ARRRAREHNER

BIEF B LD $£622E A 7156 55566 {5
MESe8lE REAIEREEGRAZE
FABTTAABRERGURBRME) o &0
EEeWIE2BBERERRAE LRR
HBRENBARREZE D5%MBRRERA
FREAEg AZEEeEEAREAD -
ZERBNBEARZEZ LEENER
— RS- REBERDEIEHTEZ
BEMEFERRERT -

RERREFAELERARZBN
B

RIEBEAFGHE6ISE 2R RER
FREAG ERANBRRNBRREE D
25%MABIRRIZP0BEERERRE
RELERROBRURBERME) AT ER
EHBEZBRRAREHANRE - RRE
BRARIGPIMMEBAEHAEFRRAS
REZHEMRRRF ©

CHEERERREBRRE —T-RFFR 75

EEH

Corporate
Information

BBRE

Financial
Highlights

2015 F KRER

2015 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis
BEEBHRR DN

Management Discussion

REERE

=

EER

Directors and Senior
Management

Report of
Directors
EEEHE

2
o
Q,
7]
o

41
L
"
i
3k
S

o
9
=
©
(=
=
[
>
[<}
o
Q
=
©
i
o
o
=
o
()

Financial Statements
BB ®E



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Room 2211, 22nd Floor, ACE Tower, Windsor House,
311 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: +852 2834 6759

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through Annual General Meetings and other general
meetings. At the Annual General Meeting, Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year 2015, the Company has not made any changes to its
Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s Articles
of Association is also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

18 M % B

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLDPAC GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldpac
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 163, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 3% BUAD & ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEBEEREMEERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

2014
Notes RMB’000
Bt &t AREBFT
Turnover —E 2] 7 1,684,632 1,521,069
Cost of sales B B (1,239,632) (1,102,565)
Gross profit EF 445,000 418,504
Other income, expenses, HEAMA - FX - =
gains or losses % E1E 8 71,096 52,543
Research and development costs B 3% B A (79,539) (70,339)
Selling and distribution costs THE ko HHEKR (112,521) (115,843)
Administrative expenses TR (30,552) (27,254)
Share of profit of associates FEAG B &8 2 Rl T 19 2,743 —
Finance costs B 75 B AR 9 (48) (1,059)
Profit before taxation BR B A1 R 8 10 296,179 256,552
Taxation I 12 (54,341) (43,045)
Profit for the year FEFE 241,838 213,507
Other comprehensive income for FEHEMEBEEA
the year
— exchange differences arising on —HREBINEBES
translation of foreign operations mEEAEHRSE
which may be reclassified EEENENEE
subsequently to profit or loss 1,634 62
Total comprehensive income for FEZEWALE
the year 243,472 213,569
Earnings per share BREF 14
— Basic — &K 29.1 cents 1l 25.7 cents {lli
— Diluted — %8 28.7 cents fili  25.2 cents 1Ll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IS AROR | R

__o
2014
Notes RMB’000
o aF AR T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment IEYE U 15 196,108 186,373
Land use rights o (5 A R 16 755 890
Goodwill EES 17 1,375 —
Intangible assets M & E 18 13,546 15,835
Interests in associates REEE NBRRE 19 38,457 —
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEWE WMENEE
plant and equipment BENTEE 6,432 11,732
Amount due from an associate JFE W B 42 A A 3R 23 814 —
Pledged bank deposit EHIEITEFER 25 100,000 —
Fixed bank deposits RITE BT 25 110,000 —
467,487 214,830
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =g 20 320,936 284,878
Trade receivables JE W E R 21 492,903 300,624
Other receivables and prepayments EH b E U K2 FB A R 22 19,589 11,558
Amount due from an associate il RN 23 4,153 —
Other financial assets HEtemEE 24 — 740,000
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITER 25 22,064 22,574
Fixed bank deposits RITTHFR 25 296,089 617,600
Bank balances and cash WITHER KRR 25 983,620 125,233
2,139,354 2,102,467
Current liabilities REERE
Trade and bills payables JERE R K ENEIE 26 567,317 546,886
Other payables H fth JE S FRIB 27 147,662 123,216
Government grants BT #8 B 28 18,720 4,820
Taxation i 18 36,180 18,130
769,879 693,052
Net current assets REBEEFHE 1,369,475 1,409,415
Total assets less current liabilities MEERARBERS 1,836,962 1,624,245
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

R B IR R R 3k ()

2014
Notes RMB’'000
Bt & AREEF T
Non-current liability kRBEE
Deferred taxation EEFRIE 30 22,748 13,407
Net assets EEFE 1,814,214 1,610,838
Capital and reserves EXRRREB
Share capital [N 31 1,190,419 1,175,015
Reserves & 623,795 435,823
Total equity DR 1,814,214 1,610,838

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 163 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16
March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

LU Run Ting
EBE

Chairman and Executive Director

EFRTIERNTEF

FEECN2016F3F16BHEXRITRABE
TOEZFI13BREMBIRETNER - I
AATEFEeRREE

HOU Ping
&F

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

HITEFRERNTTE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERB2ER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R & E2015F 128312 FE

O
Shares
held
under
share Share
Share Share award options  Translation Other Statutory Retained
capital premium scheme reserve reserve reserves reserves profits Total
B
L BRE
BA  ROEE  BERSG di] EifE  HAuRE  LERE AIEAE At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE ARETR ARETR ARETE ARBTZ ARETR AREBTL ARETL

At 1 January 2014 201451518 653 1,172,184 — 3,800 1,651 39,180 27,49 152,148 1,397,112

Profit for the year FEAE — - - - - - - 213,507 213,507
Exchange differences arisingon B BN EBELE

translation of foreign operations 1 £ 18 7] & #7

which may be reclassified AEEBEN

subsequently to profit or loss ERZE — - - - 62 - - - 62

Total comprehensive income for & 2 E A
the year fek| — — — — 62 — — 213,507 213,569

Transfer upon abolition of par REF D AEHIR
value under the new Hong BERROEEER
Kong Companies Ordinance HE

: 1,172,184 (1,172,184) — — — — — — -
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1T {# §& B HE 1l

share options (note 31) BITHRG
(Hiz£31) 2,178 — — (667) — — — - 1,511
Recognition of equity-settled REREE RS
share-based payments AERIHFE — — — 30,186 — — — — 30,186
Transfers R — — — — — — 17,017 (17,017) —
Dividends recognised as BRBIENKES
distribution (note 13) (Htit13) — — — — — — — (31,540) (31,540)
1,174,362 (1,172,184) — 29,519 — — 17,017 (48,557) 157
At 31 December 2014 H2014F12A318 1,175,015 — — 33,319 1,713 39,180 44,513 317,098 1,610,838
Profit for the year FEAE

Exchange differences arisingon B iGN EBE L
translation of foreign operations 7 £ 74 7] & 7
which may be reclassified ARERHEN
subsequently to profit or loss EREE

Total comprehensive income for ~ FE 2 E A%
the year

Repurchase of shares 10 B85

Issue of shares upon exercise of 117 i & i 42 1 %17
share options (note 31) HRR1D (M £31)

Recognition of equity-settled BEFEEIRG
share-based payments BEBS A

Purchase of shares under share 1R 15 % 3 12 By 31 21
award scheme BEKH

Share of reserves of an associate & {5 B 4 2 &) (i 1

Transfers B

Dividends recognised as BRAED KRS
distribution (note 13) (Hi£13)

At 31 December 2015 R2015512 318
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

REREREERE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

Other reserves represent the aggregate of capitalisation of statutory
reserves into capital of a subsidiary of the Company, Goldpac Limited
(formerly known as Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai) Limited) in 2011 and
contribution from a shareholder and share of other reserves of
associates.

As stipulated by the relevant Laws and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC", excluding the special administrative
regions of Hong Kong and Macau for the purpose of this Annual
Report only), certain subsidiaries of the Company which established in
the PRC are required to make appropriation to the statutory reserve
fund at 10% of their profit after tax based on their statutory financial
statements. The statutory reserve fund may only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase the capital of those subsidiaries.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R & Z2015F 12831812 FE

—0

2014
RMB’'000
AREF T
Operating activities KR &)
Profit before taxation B %% AT ) 296,179 256,552
Adjustments for: KRS I
Investment income from other Hib o mEED
financial assets TERA (13,430) (9,909)
Interest income F B A (30,359) (27,992)
Interest expenses FMBRX 48 1,059
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BELREETE 39,996 26,959
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEHH 2,289 2,290
Operating lease rentals in respect of land use T AELREEE
rights itk 135 135
Loss on disposal of property, plant and REVHE BWELEE
equipment B 1E 156 913
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised on & W BR FORVE
trade receivables A (B mE) (34) 2,268
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised on H b ' W OB E
other receivables A (B m) (2,532) 1,171
Allowance for obsolete inventories PRETFER®E 3,935 5,412
Equity-settled share-based payments EREEURN A
a2 16,868 30,186
Share of profit of associates FEAG & R Rl A (2,743) —
Operating cash flows before movements in LEEFHANLE
working capital Rene 310,508 289,044
Increase in inventories FE M (39,993) (18,428)
Increase in trade receivables JE WS FE N (192,245) (108,817)
Increase in amount due from an associate JFE i B N m) A N (4,967) —
Increase in other receivables and prepayments Hib ek B R FB IE
140 (5,499) (1,032)
Increase in trade and bills payables A & 3K A R 4R 32 0 20,431 117,908
Increase in other payables E b JE A BRIR 18 A0 24,446 53,922
Increase in government grants I %8 BE 15 0 13,900 1,720
Cash generated from operations WEEBMENES 126,581 334,317
Taxation paid [SENE (26,830) (43,584)
Net cash from operating activities KEEEMEHRESFE 99,751 290,733
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

mE

RE&RE R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

2014
Note RMB’'000
Bt &t ARETF T
Investing activities wEES
Redemption of other financial assets BOHEMEMEE 1,149,000 1,177,000
Withdrawals of fixed bank deposits RESRITEHTER 1,194,821 2,857,414
Withdrawals of pledged bank deposits REREHEBRITER 46,491 68,106
Interest received B U F B 30,359 27,992
Investment income received from other BERHEMEREERSE
financial assets A 13,430 9,909
Proceeds on disposal of property, plantand EZEEWZ - WE X
equipment & A 45 —
Placement of fixed bank deposits Tﬁﬁ( RITEHER (1,013,572) (2,474,447)
Purchase of other financial assets EEAMSMEE (409,000) (1,917,000)
Placement of pledged bank deposits TR RRITFR (145,981) (62,786)
Capital contribution to associates HEE N RINIRER (32,120) —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E WX B E M & & (22,960) (89,440)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEMERE MRE
plant and equipment BEffTES (21,440) (11,732)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B BT &8 A ) 33 (1,590) —
Net cash from (used) in investing activities WEEEE(FTA)
ReFH 787,483 (414,984)
Financing activities BEEE
Dividends paid B E (65,579) (31,540)
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (5.453) (86,039)
Share repurchase & 7 [ B (2,984) —
Purchase of shares under share award ffETFfoﬁ HEEETEIEE
scheme A% 19 (74) —
Interest paid B AT B (48) (1,059)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon FSEGRES ﬁ% A% #E T 21T Ay
exercise of share option O EEE S 8,173 1,511
Bank loans raised BEEERITER 5,458 70,723
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBTAIR S 5 (60,507) (46,404)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and Be MR EEYIE N
cash equivalents CR ) 558 826,727 (170,655)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1TA1TEBBRES MRS EEY 423,233 593,824
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes /& RGN & 1,398 64
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 A31HIE & &
HWEEEBY 1,251,358 423,233
Analysis of the balances of cash and BehIREEEY
cash equivalents EeR oA
Bank balances and cash BITFRRES 983,620 125,233
Fixed bank deposits which matured within 31E A AR B R ER1T
three months 7E B fF 3K 267,738 298,000
1,251,358 423,233
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R & Z2015F 12831812 FE

—o0

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION 1. " REBARMBERE
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HoEH®
The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong ARA2—RETEXMOBRHEAE
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong [EAT AAFIREEREEHARS
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company acts as an FTERAR (B LTS R
investment holding company while the Group is principally AR REEERER AR AEH
engaged in the research and development of embedded B E B E R A BT
software, development, manufacture and sales of secure payment UEREERAABREONINETEE
products carrying embedded software, such as smart card, and mINE e REMME HENMEE
provision of total solution services for financial secure payment. UEREE2AIMNESRET D X NER
i
The address of the registered office and principal place of PNS/NI=Y IR ) =W ol N e el
business of the Company are set out in the corporate information NS N FREEBERZE o
section to the annual report.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi Wi EaMBRERATARK D2 -
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of the HEANRMNINEEE —5 -
Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014, A £2013F12A31H Kk2014F12 A
the Group prepared its consolidated financial statements in MBI EE  REBEEMBR
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards RIDIZBEERE & HREER (BB
("IFRSs"). MBHRELERDRE -
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has prepared M T EEeFHERFM BHE
the consolidated financial statements that comply with Hong 2005F 12 A3MBIEZ2HFE > K&
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") applicable for the HRAFEEEM ZEBYBRSE
current year, together with the comparative period data for the EA(TEETBREED ] HFBRAK
year ended 31 December 2014, as described in the significant eV BmE  UWERAEHL ZHE
accounting policies. There is no adjustment made by the Group in 2014F 12 A31HIEZFEHE - K
restating its IFRSs consolidated financial statements for the year EETERGEFTAETET B RE
ended 31 December 2014, including the consolidated statement Rz B BREz MY B2IE2014F1 A
of financial position as at 1 January 2014 to HKFRSs financial 1RZEEHBARRRE REE2014
statements. FNRANBIEZFE 26 M
ALY IR B B B 7 S 2R Bl AR R
B4R G B TSR (E (] F % o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R R MR (D

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The estimates at 1 January 2014 and at 31 December 2014 under
HKFRSs are consistent with those made for the same dates in
accordance with IFRSs. The estimates used by the Group to
present these amounts in accordance with HKFRSs reflect
conditions at 1 January 2014, the date of transition to HKFRSs
and as at 31 December 2014.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions of the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

1.

—REP R M BHRRR
HoEB @

20145118 &2014F12 4318 -
HEBMBHREEA L ZEE
AR AR RERM B RS E
the @FTAFTHRE - AKEEREFEM
BHREENMEL ZG5HEE -

AEBERFEEREBT AT
MEBRHGAR(ESGIHEA
1) M 2 BB B RS A
BEET

EBEGHERE 19 AREEAMata
A IS 1B B #t 3%
BEEMBHRELER 2010F 5
ZIBETR 20126 2
&S 15
s ZE A
FREE
BAEMBHREERN 201MFE
ZIEETR 2013F 2
BB
R ER
FREE

AEREHRBEBYBRELENNE
RIMGTRREBRRA  WRHAKH
RAEE Ro2 B R B 3R 3R AR
R FEME RRTARE
B EREENTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B Bt 3 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 K& E2015F 12 A31HIE 2 FE

—o0
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FNEREETNEEBY
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING % 3% & 25 Bl BV 2R A0 )
STANDARDS (Continued)
New or revised HKFRSs issued but not yet B M8 1B M R E M FET
effective RRBETEBHERSE
2 |
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised AREBTEESFEANULNTIEEMAE
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: HMARERZHFT REIEFEH BT
wmE LR
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ EBYHREEN SgmI A
957
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts? EAPBREEE EERTERP?
F 1457
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EBPHRELED KEEFERH
Customers' 1557 ON
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests EBPHRELED WEARKSESE
in Joint Operations> EAREACCHIEN) mMERE’
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative® BB G R e’
ERRACCHIFN)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of e R W R
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation’ FI6EREB AIEX AR
25 %R 2385 BB
(flz HES)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BBV BmELED  2012F 220145
2012-2014 Cycle® EETA) BE 2B
TR A
FERHE?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants® BB G 2ER BE EEM
and HKAS 41 F16HRNEBES =Ry
AR 4158
_ _ _ . (BET )
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial BB @ ER BB mE
Statements’ F275(1BETAN) A
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between EBVHEREED REEFLHEBS
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint ERN e FEECEY
Venture® @585 2858 HMEELS
(1BET ) gEE!
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying the BBV B RS 2R &égﬁﬁ CFEA
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception® E105E 0 BB AR’
B 7 S A
F1RERES
S5t RAIZE28%
(1BET )
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 ! R2018F1 A1 2 # B2 FE
HA ] 4 34
2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or ? R2016F 1 A1 H 32 # 18 .2 & 1A
after 1 January 2016 BB TR 2RI By BT T #R 2% E IR A
G4
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 ’ K2016F 1 H1H 3k 2 % 1r.2 FEF
B A 3%
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ¢ REEEFEZ AR 2 EFHIR2 FEH
determined G4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R R MR (D
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of the above new and revised
HKFRSs will have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO").

The provisions of the new CO regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with reference to
the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the financial
year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements based on the new requirements.
Information previously required to be disclosed under the
predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or
amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17 "Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income/consolidated statement of profit or loss
from the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group'’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the

amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion
thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in an associate (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when there has
been a transfer of risks and rewards to the customer, no further
work or processing is required by the Group, the quantity and
quality of the goods has been determined with reasonable
accuracy and standard, the price is fixed or determinable, and
collectability is reasonable assured. This is generally when title
passes and the goods have been delivered to the designated
locations for the sales of magnetic strip cards, smart cards and
the related personalisation services. Revenue from the sales of
on-site card issuance equipment and the related revenue from
the provision of on-site card issuance system solutions are
recognised when the equipment are delivered and the services
are provided at the designated locations and after inspection of
the equipment.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments in subsidiaries is recognised
when the owners’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Such construction in progress are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property, plant and
equipment commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-33":%
Motor vehicles 10%-20%
Plant and machinery 10%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Land use rights

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is
generally treated as finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are
accounted for as operating leases.

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interests in land are

accounted for as operating leases and are stated at cost and
released over the lease term on a straight line basis.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R R MR (D

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

J the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior
periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grant will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Grants related to
depreciable assets are presented as deferred income and are
released to profit or loss over the useful life of the assets. Grants
related to expense items are recognised at the same period as
those expenses are charged in the profit or loss and are reported
separately as other income.

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under
local sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of sale
of the relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the Group's obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"”) or loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in other income,
expenses, gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL represent those designated as at FVTPL
on initial recognition.

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets and is included in other income,
expenses, gains or losses line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment loss.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the loans and receivables have been affected.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loan and receivable is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instrument issued by the group entity are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss in
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other payables and
bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods and it
further excludes items that are not taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

The financial statements of each group entity are prepared in the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (its functional currency).

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant leases. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight line basis.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit scheme and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF") are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

3.

FESTHXRw@

RN

FLAE #0163 P B R PP 75 O 48 K
MoERLOKRELZABEANE
WD ARERLY - A EMELD
DRBKEERL -

AEBEFEREEA
CERHBRABEOEHUES
EHRBAZ - BT EEHROE W
REREHEE RESEREERR
BRAMESEAHINM -

IR K48 R B A

1) B € fFOR A fE Rl ET 8 - BT E IR
B AR AR B 58 Roa Bl AT 2 A
FrBESE]) I AHFRERE
BORHERE A EES HNEE

RGO RERNN L5

LR BERUERZEEDN
X5
RTESZIEBRE

MR TRBEE (AR IERETE R B K
HRLTAEE)ME  ERKZR
BzrorBEDZ2ZERE G B M
BEREEcAABENEE  RNEB
M A BRSO 3H - (B
) TRAR FEIE hN o

REESHER AEEETEHEY&
REBZBREEE ZE - EFTR
stz F B8 (MA)RNIBEER - UE
REIAX RGBT 2 A5 LREE
PR (E AR R 2 -

SHEERERERLA —T—RFFHK 1717

o

EEH

Corporate
Information

BBRE

Financial
Highlights

2015 F KRER

2015 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

Management Discussion
and Analysis
BEEBHRR DN

REERE

Management
=

EER

Report of Directors and Senior
Directors
EEERE

Corporate Governance
Report
EERBRE

41
W
B
=

“
i)
c
(9}
E
3]
g
©
il
wv
o
o
<
<
=
w




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B Bt 3 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R & Z2015F 12831812 FE

112

—0

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

Share award scheme

When the trustee of the share award scheme purchases the
Company's shares from the open market, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented
as shares held under share award scheme and deducted from
total equity. No gain or loss is recognised on the transactions of
the Company’s own shares.

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of shares awarded at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share award reserve).

When the trustee transfers the Company’s shares to grantees
upon vesting, the related costs of the granted shares vested are
reversed from shares held under share award scheme.
Accordingly, the related expense of the granted shares is reversed
from the share award reserve. The difference arising from such
transfer is debited/credited to accumulated profits.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowances for inventories

The directors of the Company reviews the inventory aging
analysis at the end of the reporting period and identifies the
slow-moving inventory items that are no longer suitable for use in
production or sales.

The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-
product basis at the end of each reporting period and provides
necessary allowance if the net realisable value is estimated to be
below the carrying amount. The directors of the Company
estimate the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group normally makes full provision for
inventories held over one year as the net realisable value of such
inventories are considered to be minimal and also make specific
provision for slow-moving and obsolete finished goods where
appropriate. Allowances of approximately RMB3,935,000 were
made for obsolete inventories for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB5,412,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was RMB492,903,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately RMB7,226,000) (2014: carrying amount
of RMB300,624,000 net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately RMB7,260,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents, bank loans and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a
regular basis. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital and will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the raising of bank loans.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

. =
ERITHEER

2014
RMB’'000
ARBET T
Financial assets EWMEE
Designated at FVTPL BEAnEFAERE
— funds —E& — 740,000
Loans and receivables (including cashand E R REWRZIE (2R S K
cash equivalents) WEEEY 2,027,342 1,075,037
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost B8 AR AR 583,889 551,130

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, other financials assets, amount due from an
associate, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade, bills and other payables. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform an obligation
by the counterparties in the event of the counterparties failure to
perform their obligations at the end of the reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group continuously monitors the level of
exposure to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk has adequate
procedures in place.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 74% of the total
trade receivables as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 75%) was due
from customers engaged in the banking industry and no other
financial assets as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 100%) was
unlisted funds from a financial institution.

The Group also have concentration of credit risk on fixed bank
deposits which are deposited with a bank with high credit rating.
Other than the above, the Group and the Company do not have
any other significant concentration of credit risk. The credit risk
on pledged bank deposits and bank balances is minimal as such
amounts are placed in banks with good reputation.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to risk of
United States dollar (“USD”). The percentage of the
Group's sales and purchases that are denominated in USD,
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
group companies are as follows:
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i)  Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

€@ T A

BEEREEBZEHEKREK

(1)

™5 R ke @)

(i) EXEE(E)
UTRAEBEARREHRIN
INEHBHEEEEREES

EAREE

Assets

EE
2014
RMB'000
ARBEF T
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") B (DB 11,411 12,100
usD ETT 730,856 1,230
RMB AR 466 1,018
Euros (“EUR") BT (Tt l) 76 2,270

Liabilities

g1&
2014
RMB’000
ARETF T
HKD g 1,409 1,641
usD ETT 65,259 21,003
Japanese Yen ("JPY") HE(B®TD 400 —
British Pound Sterling (“GBP") ARG EE S ([HEE]) = 22
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Currency risk (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis below includes the Group’s
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
where the denomination of the balances is in a currency
other than the functional currency of the respective group
companies at the end of the reporting period and has been
determined based on the exposure to exchange rates
against the functional currency of relevant group
companies. For a 5% weakening of these currencies against
the functional currency of relevant group companies and all
other variables being held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year is as follows:

€@ T B

BEEABEEBFEERR
()

™5 R K @)

() EXEE(E)
TERHENGBKEE S TBEL
EENAREHANREED
INEHBEEEERREER A
& EASEE AR ED
M EBHAEBES BB
BEMERIHEEXHAEBER
AR EEMET - £ &
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BRI ES% b e R
B KEBEEEFBER
mE

Increase (decrease) in profit for FENEECR)
the year
— HKD — A%
— USD — %7
— RMB — AR
— EUR — BT
— JPY —HT

2014

RMB’000

AREEFIT

(375) (523)
(24,960) 989
(17) (51)

(3) (113)

15 —

There would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
for the year where the respective currencies strengthens
against the functional currency of relevant group companies
by 5%.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and fixed bank
deposits (see note 25 for details).

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial
assets and liabilities, mainly interest bearing bank deposits
and balances and bank loans at variable interest rates. The
Company has no significant interest rate risk exposure. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging

policy.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest bearing bank
balances and bank loans at variable rates at the end of the
reporting period and assumed that the amount of assets
and liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. 50 basis points was
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. The management does not anticipate a decrease in
interest rate in the next financial year having regard to the
trends in market interest rates and global economic
environment. Accordingly, sensitivity analysis on a decrease
in interest rates is not presented.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)
If interest rates on bank balances and bank loans had been
50 basis points higher and all other variables were held
constant, the potential effect on profit for the year is as
follows:

@I A

BEEABEEBFEERR
()

™5 R K @)

(i) F =7 Bz (%)
WIRITFER R E XA X FFA50
MEZ WEMBEZETE -
HAFEMNERBENTZENT

2014
RMB'000
ARBT T

FEMBEE

Increase in profit for the year

4,918 626

Liquidity risk management

The management of the Group has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
banking facilities and by continuously monitoring forecasted and
actual cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial
liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TR I Amw
Financial risk management objectives and BHERBEEBZEHEEE
policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk management (Continued) mEE SRR EE @
Over 3 Over 6
months months
Weighted but not but not Total
average On Lessthan morethan more than Over undiscounted Carrying
Financial liabilities interest rate  demand 3 month 6 months 1 year 1year cash flows  amount
ik SR 6ERZT 1EUT KRR
cREE FHRE RER 3fBR 3EAML 6EAME 1FEUE RERAE KEE
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’'000 RMB'000  RMB’'000
AR ARE AR AR  ARE ARE AR%E
T Fr FT T F T T
At 31 December 2015 A2015F
12A31H
Non-derivative financial JE#74 €&t
liabilities =R
Trade and bills payables e & 3 &
N R IR — — 484,836 64,110 14,194 4,177 567,317 567,317
Other payables H fh FE < 5K — — 16,571 — — — 16,571 16,571
— 501,407 64,110 14,194 4,177 583,888 583,888
At 31 December 2014 A2014E
12A31H
Non-derivative financial {74 &/
liabilities =4
Trade and bills payables & & 3 %
ENRIE — 1,719 361,166 171,728 12,273 — 546,886 546,886
Other payables H b e 5 3R — — 4,244 — — — 4,244 4,244
1,719 365,410 171,728 12,273 — 551,130 551,130
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
instruments are determined (in particular; the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

W R
2 o
i
xﬁ

BT E
BT B

AEEHHE

Fﬁ>

REERENR AEE-LERT
HAURARBERAE TRAIIZE
ERELEZRTANAABENMA
1% W R (5 Bl = T 3R A RO i B R IO A
2g)

Fair value
as at
31 December Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets 2014 hierarchy and key inputs
20144
12A3188 AREE
cREE AREE BR HERTNEERE
RMB’000
ARBFT
Other financial assets — 740,000 Level 2 Redemption value
— unlisted funds in quoted by the relevant
PRC investment trust
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 throughout the REBERBETFE  —HM_H2H
year. mEEE o

Except the above financial assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis, the directors of the Company consider the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information has been identified on the basis of internal
management reports which are reviewed by the Chairman of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, in order to
allocate resources to the operating and reportable segments and
to assess their performance.

The Group's operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

Embedded software
and secure payment
products

— the research, development, sales
and manufacture of embedded
software and secure payment
products, such as smart card
carrying embedded software

Personalisation service — provision of personalisation
outsourcing service for financial

institutes and governments

Card issuance system
solutions

— provision of card issuance
equipment and related
accessories and solutions
services

Each operating and reportable segment derives its turnover from
the sales of products or provision of services. They are managed
separately because each product requires different production
and marketing strategies. No operating segments identified by
the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in
arising at the reportable segments of the Group.

Turnover represents the fair value of the consideration received or
receivables for goods sold or services rendered to outside
customers during the year.

Segments results represent the gross profit earned by each
segment.
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Em wmE A ;AR
LIRS VRSP S
ROFRES - SHE
MEE
HERERSE — AoBEE- K
FERAER
HrE R BUR
B 32N B AR 75
BREGHER — REBREZE
RS N AR R
A b

%,\Q%&ﬂA&&%ﬁE‘BLﬂ%EEDD

NIEMHREREEEXE -BATR
EREETR m F&miﬁ“%ﬁ
B SOABETEBEIRE - K&

EEOWEED -E‘ME)HEEZ?KE@T

DEBEEEE D WMABRGHNER -

RERERLR —T-AFF®m 123

Corporate 0

Financial
Highlights

2015 Major Events

Chairman’s

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

Corporate Governance

“
i)
c
(9}
E
3]
g
©
il
wv
o
o
<
<
=
w

2015 F KRER

Report of

Directors
EEERE

EEH

Information
MHRE

EERE

Statement

and Analysis
B WR DA

REERE

Management
=

EER

Report
EERBRE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B Bt 3 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 K& E2015F 12 A31HIE 2 FE

124

—o0

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(Continued)

EEHERTHBER @

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by UTAEREBIZREDEE D W
reportable segment: ERBREENDN
Turnover Results
2014 2014
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AREFTT AREF T
Sales to external parties of MEENEP ZHE
— embedded software and — AR A
secure payment products ZEYNES 1,389,907 1,264,383 329,042 314,358
— personalisation service —EIE R ERE 155,686 140,331 60,918 57,255
— card issuance system —BREZGER
solutions R 139,039 116,355 55,040 46,891
1,684,632 1,521,069 445,000 418,504
Research and development costs  Fff %% ik 7% (79,539) (70,339)
Other operating expenses HihESE R (143,073) (143,097)
Other income, expenses, gains  EflUg A - &H -
or losses &3 TEi=] 40,737 24,551
Interest income B YA 30,359 27,992
Share of profit of associates JE 1 B & R B R A 2,743 —
Finance costs B 75 B AR (48) (1,059
Profit before taxation & 5 A1 A 296,179 256,552

The Chairman of the Company makes decisions according to the
operating results of each segment. No information of segment
assets and liabilities is available for the assessment of performance
of different business activities. Therefore, no information about

segment assets and liabilities are presented.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Other information

Turnover from external customers attributed to the Group by
location of the customers is presented as follows:

EEHERPHBER @

Hith & %

AEBRAIIBEFPFMNEEERE
FHEED25mT

2014
RMB’000
AREF T

Turnover EER
— PRC —rh 1,585,486 1,447,595
— Overseas — g oh 99,146 73,474
1,684,632 1,521,069

All the non-current assets excluding financial instruments of the
Group are situated in the PRC, Hong Kong and the Philippines.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there were two customers
from the segments of embedded software and secure payment
products and personalisation service with turnover of
RMB282,825,000 and RMB233,193,000 respectively (2014:
RMB360,752,000 and RMB175,901,000 respectively) which
individually accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total
turnover.

AEBEKRERIANRINZPIAER
BEEOURTE EEMIERE -

FBEEEEFHNEHR

HE2015F12A3MB L2 FEE R
MARBHEMEZ 2 E@ARE
BREERBITEMEBERLPNEXE
o Rl A AR ¥282,825,000 7T F A
R ¥ 233,193,0007C (20144 & Bl A
A R # 360,752,000 7T #1175,901,000
L) D AME AR EEE EREN10%
LA E©
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8. OTHER INCOME, EXPENSES, GAINS OR 8. HMA X &=

LOSSES =]
2014
RMB’000
AR T
Reversal of (impairment loss recognised on) & [o] ( & Y & 70 RL(E 2E45)
trade receivables 34 (2,268)
Reversal of (impairment loss recognised on)  $ [a] (E b & Ug FUR B )
other receivables 2,532 (1,171)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  WEREEEE
equipment (156) (913)
Government grants R # Bh 10,695 1,083
Interest income B U A 30,359 27,992
Investment income from other financial HthemEEHN
assets & WA 13,430 9,909
Net exchange loss [ 18K 55 (1,788) (1,034)
Value-added tax refund EER R 15,788 18,519
Others Hih 202 426
71,096 52,543
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MBHA
2014
RMB’'000
AR T
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ARAFABEEE
repayable within five years HRITERWNFE (48) (1,059)

126  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6 B 3% R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

O
10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. B A7 F B g2
= S
2014 géﬁ
RMB'000 B0
AREF T
o b
Profit before taxation has been arrived at FrRELRIAE E B - g
after charging: %é
Directors’ remuneration (note 11) EEM (FrsE11) 16,920 13,905 R
Other staff costs HEmEEMS 155,097 127,115 )
Other staff's equity-settled share-based HEEUEZEEURGD A 5 éﬁ;
payments R 12,812 23,284 55
Other staff’s retirement benefits scheme HEiiE & RKRBRFHEIH K o
contributions 4,767 4,199
189,596 168,503  Lin
Less: Staff costs included in research S AT B AN R BB B B AN %EE&'
and development costs (45,405) (35,548) § “
144,191 132,955 _g i
Allowance for obsolete inventories included =t A $5 & 5k 2N 9 ff & 17 & B gg‘&
in cost of sales 3,935 5,412 ki §m
Amortisation of intangible assets 5 T 4 0 3 2,289 2290  °
Auditor’s remuneration % H A B & 1,366 1,391
Depreciation of property, plant and M- -WEREBITE 55w
equipment 39,996 26,959 ggﬂ
Operating lease rentals in respect of KEHENRES o
— land use rights — b AR 135 135
— office premises —WAE 7,881 6,688 g
The cost of sales represented the cost of inventories recognised HEKAEBEHAFERRRKAHN Egmuu
as expenses during the year. TFERA - 5 b
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S MNES BFHFTEHEAN
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EoFMEEMNS
EMPLOYEES
2014
RMB’000
AR T
Directors’ fees % 537 474
Other emoluments to executive directors B TFHITEENNE
— basic salaries and allowances —EARFE S EER 6,941 5,835
— bonus — 4L 5,311 628
— retirement benefits scheme — IR KAE F 5T 81 3%
contributions 75 66
— equity-settled share-based payments —EREE ARG
BERNZA 4,056 6,902
16,920 13,905
The bonus of the directors was determined with reference to the EFenAMBAEBEERTE -
Group's performance.
Mr. HOU Ping is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his BEEEHBRARTERHNTE M
emoluments disclosed below include those for services rendered MBS ETRIEE  BEANLREE
by him as the Chief Executive. RERBITEREBNRS -
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S "MN.BEE -BE
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID B EME

EMPLOYEES (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the vyear,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies

Ordinance is as follows:

MemT :

RIBE R 2 £ ™8R &R F &P AT
BEZEFRARWTEAFEL

2014
RMB’'000
ARET T
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Mr. LU Run Ting EEELAE
— basic salaries and allowances —E A F e fEL 3,305 2,577
— bonus — AL 2,482 —
— retirement benefits scheme — R KAE F 5T 8 3k
contributions 15 12
— equity-settled share-based —EREE ARG RER
payments B A 1,830 3,114
7,632 5,703
Mr. LU Runyi EOEG LA
— basic salaries and allowances — E AR F e ELL 861 711
— bonus — D4 691 500
— retirement benefits scheme — IRKAE F 5T 81 3K
contributions 12 15
— equity-settled share-based —EREEUARGD BER
payments R 989 1,683
2,553 2,909
Mr. HOU Ping BEEEE
— basic salaries and allowances —EBEAREF S FER 2,020 1,879
— bonus — 4L 2,021 —
— retirement benefits scheme — IR KAE F 5T 81 3%
contributions 33 24
— equity-settled share-based —RaEBEURDRBER
payments 732 A 742 1,263
4,816 3,166
SHEERZERBER AR —T—HFFR 129
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S M"M.EBEE BEITEER
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEESHMEEME @

EMPLOYEES (Continued)

2014
RMB'000
ARETF T
Mr. LU Xiaozhong ENEEAE
— basic salaries and allowances — RN F 2 MERL 755 668
— bonus — 4T 117 128
— retirement benefits scheme — R IRAE R ET Bl 4K
contributions 15 15
— equity-settled share-based —REREBEFEARN BERKY
payments At 495 842
1,382 1,653
Sub-total N 16,383 13,431
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly BT EEI M TERHEER
for their services in connection with the management of the RATRRAEBEL 2 RBE -
affairs of the Company and the Group.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE BYFHTES
DIRECTORS
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin BRI E
— directors’ fees —8ae 215 190
Mr. ZHU Lijun RIERE
— directors’ fees — s 161 142
Mr. LIU John Jianhua BleELst
— directors’ fees —as 161 142
Sub-total N 537 474
The independent non-executive director’s emoluments shown LT BIERTESZHVEETER
above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company. HEBARRESESZRIEE -
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December
2015 included three (2014: three) directors of the Company,
details of whose remuneration are set out above. The
remuneration of the remaining highest paid individuals who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company during the
year were as follows:

11.

REZE2015F12A831B 2 FERNM
EEFMALTBE=M(2014F =
M)EE EMEFBHENER B

EERERATEN KEEHTH
SEFMALOMEIT :

2014
RMB'000
AR T
Employees ==

— basic salaries and allowances — E AR FH & AER 2,220 1,595
— bonus — D4 1,088 650

— retirement benefits scheme — R RAE T 5T &4 50
contributions 63 40

— equity-settled share-based payments — RS EEUAR D

BEMN Y N 987 1,683
4,358 3,968

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

BREFUINESFMALOHABE
TREBENA

Number of employees

BEAR

2014

Up to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

1,000,000 ¥ g% LA T~

1,000,001 7 & 2= 1,500,000 %8 #& — —
1,500,001 /& & 2= 2,000,000, #& — —
2,000,001 % ¥ 2= 2,500,000 /& & — 2
2,500,001 % ¥ == 3,000,000 /& & 2 —

During the year, no remuneration were paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director or the chief executive waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

CHEERERAERRT —T-—HFFR

RAFER AEERBERAEFTX
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TAXATION 12. B 1A
2014
RMB’'000
ARBFT

The charge comprises: S BE:

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PEIDEMESB(TRERFER]) (39,865) (33,060)
Underprovision of EIT in prior years BEFEMSHEETR (2,583) —
(42,448) (33,060)
PRC withholding tax on dividend distribution % .4 J& &) 71 B ¥& 1 %4 (1,300) (2,905)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH (1,252) (1,251)
(45,000) (37,216)
Deferred taxation (note 30) IRIEREIE (K72 30) (9,341) (5,829)
(54,341) (43,045)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The PRC income tax is calculated at the applicable rates in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to EIT at 25% except
that Goldpac Limited (formerly known as Goldpac Secur-Card
(Zhuhai) Limited) is approved for 3 years as enterprise that
satisfied as a High-New Technology Enterprise and entitles the
preferential tax rate of 15% in 2014, 2015 and 2016.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui (2008) No. 1, only the profits
earned by Goldpac Limited prior to 1 January 2008, when
distributed to foreign investors, can be grandfathered with the
exemption from withholding tax. Whereas, pursuant to Articles 3
and 27 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its Implementation Rules,
dividend distributed out of the profit generated thereafter, shall
be subject to EIT at 10% or reduced tax rate if tax treaty or
arrangement applies. Under the relevant tax arrangement,
withholding tax rate on dividend distribution to the qualifying
Hong Kong resident companies is 5%. Deferred tax liability on
the undistributed profits earned since 1 January 2008 have been
accrued at the tax rate of 5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

O
12. TAXATION (continued) 12. 18 @) S
Tax charge for the year is reconciled to profit before taxation as FEEMIEYT EER AR B Y EE W -
follows: I §§§
[y~
2014
RMB’000 % éﬁ
ARET R “gﬂ
4
Profit before taxation BR B AT 7 296,179 256,552 2]
Tax at the applicable income tax % @ B FT 15 1 R 51 £ B
rate (Note) B BiE (H13%) (74,045) (25.00 (64,139 (2500 E5E
Tax effect of expenses not A AT A & &M
deductible for tax purpose A (4,244) (1.4) (3,056) (1.3)
Tax effect of income not taxable 7 75 1 ¢ W A H B2 .
for tax purpose B 4,214 14 5,376 2.1 3 %
Tax effect of deductible oK B 32 306 B gen
temporary difference not MERBERT G E28
recognised Z (342) (0.1) (2,312) (0.9) som
Tax effect of tax concession BT —KPEHE S m
granted to a PRC subsidiary NAERIEBRER -
MBTE 31,821 10.7 29,175 11.4
Tax effect of different tax rate of 7£ H {th §i 7 5] 5 5 m
subsidiaries operating in other & 48 & Hy B B A S5
tax jurisdiction ELEENGE S 5 %ﬁ
BB 8 793 0.3 644 0.3 g5
Tax effect of share of profit of {4 B & 2 &) 3 F) 5w
associates 2B E 686 0.2 — —
PRC withholding tax on Ao B F EE
undistributed earnings EHH (10,640) (3.6) (8,734) (34 sty
Underprovision of EIT in prior BAEFECEMS gl
years BEBET R (2.584) (0.9) — — O
Tax charge and effective tax rate FE W FHIBSZ H K& g
for the year BH B R (54,341) (18.4) (43,045 (168) ¢ &
Note: The rate applied is the applicable tax rate in the PRC where the B &t - BT FE B0 3 5 K 4 B & B A AP B Y %&ﬂ
operation of the Group is substantially based. B B o % “
At 31 December 2015, the Group has deductible temporary MR2015F12A831H AEBERE R
differences of RMB49,014,000 (2014: RMB47,644,000) in MEFERENANREFEE=58
relation to allowance for doubtful debts and obsolete inventories. B AR 849,014,000 7T (20144 A A
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such R ¥ 47 644,0007T ) ° B 7 F A 7T 40 £
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that the LT B I AR A e TR A - HR D Bt §
temporary differences can be utilised. EEANRES s mRRE TR a
BEE - g
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A B R R MR (A

For the year ended 31 December 2015 K& E2015F 12 A31HIE 2 FE

- —0

13. DIVIDENDS

13. B2

2014
RMB’000
ARET T
2014 Final — HK10.0 cents per ordinary 2014 F F B RE—F R L HEBKB
share (declared on 19 March 2015 and #10.01L (AR2015%3 198 =
based on 831,573,000 shares) IR - E 831,573,000 %) 65,579 —
2013 Final — HK4.8 cents per ordinary 013F FERA—FREBRE
share (declared on 21 March 2014 and B4 8l (FA20145E3 4218 &
based on 830,000,000 shares) K - E 7 830,000,000 %) — 31,540

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK11.0 cents (2014: HK10.0 cents) and special dividend of HK4.0
cents (2014: nil) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2015 has been proposed by the Board and is
subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R R MR (D

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following

14. SREF

BERARBMEANEEREARNR
BERNDRBEATBIEAE

data:
2014
RMB’'000
ARETF T
Earnings 2 F
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings 5+ & & % £ 7N 2 51| BT £% F &Y
per share (profit for the year attributable B (RNRAEHE AEN
to owners of the Company) FEFH) 241,838 213,507

‘000
TR

Number of shares BHHE
Weighted average number of ordinary SATEERERNZFAEARN

shares for the purpose of basic earnings DR 39 Ak B

per share 831,348 830,032
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares B #8B I LT BT E

— Pre-IPO Share Options (note 32) —BXRARBERERERTS

(Ktat32) 10,362 15,777

Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREERNEAN

shares for the purpose of diluted earnings  J0#E ¥ 15 A% £

per share 841,710 845,809
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B Bt 3 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015

REZE2015F 12431812 FE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

136

—0

Furnitures,

15. 9% BEER®E

fixtures and Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
BR-£E
B¥ &S AE BERKEE ERIR #at
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TR ARBTR ARETT ARBTIT ARETT
cosT Bk
At 1 January 2014 201451818 55,166 17,093 2,965 172,874 3,523 251,621
Currency realignment BERZE — — O — — m
Additions NE . 11,218 1,291 34,092 42,839 89,440
Disposals RE — (645) — (18,806) — (19,451)
Transfers E21 2,566 — — 30,634 (33,200) —
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12 A31H 57,732 27,666 4,255 218,794 13,162 321,609
Currency realignment BEHE — 31 12 — — 43
Additions NE — 13,006 1,224 14,902 20,568 49,700
Acquired on acquisition R - E AR
of a subsidiary (Note 33) s UG (B 27 33) — — 217 — — 217
Disposals RE — (556) (667) (3,337) — (4,560)
Transfers E1 — — — 7,758 (7,758) —
At 31 December 2015 R2015612831H 57,732 40,147 5,041 238,117 25,972 367,009
DEPRECIATION E
At 1 January 2014 R201451R1H 15,533 13,460 1,871 95,951 — 126,815
Provided for the year FEBE 2,809 2,359 265 21,526 — 26,959
Eliminated on disposals I B Y8 — (645) — (17,893) — (18,538)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 18,342 15,174 2,136 99,584 — 135,236
Currency realignment EAR — 16 12 — — 28
Provided for the year FEBE 2,900 4,488 344 32,264 — 39,996
Eliminated on disposals B — (614) (603) (3,142) — (4,359)
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31H 21,242 19,064 1,889 128,706 — 170,901
CARRYING VALUES BRE &
At 31 December 2015 20159128318 36,490 21,083 3,152 109,411 25,972 196,108
At 31 December 2014 M2014F 12 A31H 39,390 12,492 2,119 119,210 13,162 186,373
The Group’s buildings are erected on land held under medium- AEBBFERTEERN HETH

term land use rights in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R R MR (D

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

16.

17.

LAND USE RIGHTS

The balance represents the prepayment of rentals for medium-
term land use rights situated in the PRC for a period of 50 years.

16. X ith {5 A #E

5 84 45 i 3 7 B 4F R 504F 9 o B +
b 55 PR BN TE A A S o

GOODWILL 17. 5 &
RMB’000
ARBETF T
COST AND CARRYING VALUE AR K BREE
At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 R2014F1A1B &
2014912 A31H —
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary WENBAREE 2 HE
(Note 33) (B #£33) 1,375
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12A31H 1,375

Management of the Group determined that there was no
impairment in the CGU containing the goodwill during 31
December 2015. The basis of the recoverable amount of the CGU
and its principal underlying assumptions are summarised below.

The recoverable amount of the CGU containing the goodwill has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period, and
discount rate of 4.85%. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on the unit's past performance and management's
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU
containing the goodwill to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of the CGU containing the goodwill.

HE2015F12A831BIEFEE A&
EEEERLE AAMEZHRSESE
BAaWELERE PR SELE
el emE s £EREFZHB
BT -

PR eELEEM 2T KRB S RIZ
EREESETEAETE - Kt EIA
ERREEEMSLERERFHHE
ZHMBREFEZEARERE A
KA485% 2 BhR K - (EREENET
EZEMTIERRBEREHER
EMNEREMBERSRA LR LR
X FEGANDRECBAERBANRE
BESMSERZEAEL - BEEE
BE ERZERRAUELRE AR
2y T8RS EM L REEBR
BERW OIS E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 R & Z2015F 12831812 FE

—0
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B L& E
Trademarks
g
RMB’'000
ARBEF T
cosT B A
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 7201491818 » 2014F 12 A318B &
31 December 2015 2015412 A31H 18,318
AMORTISATION 8
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1A1H 193
Charge for the year FEHHE 2,290
At 31 December 2014 MR2014F12 A31H 2,483
Charge for the year FEE 2,289
At 31 December 2015 2015412 A31H 4,772
CARRYING VALUES ERTHE B
At 31 December 2015 2015912 A31H 13,546
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12 A31H 15,835

138

On 15 November 2013, a trademark agreement was entered into
between Goldpac International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL”, a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and
controlled by the then controlling shareholder and Chairman of
the Company Mr. Lu Run Ting) and the Company, in respect of
the trademarks registered in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC,
and pursuant to which (i) GIHL agreed to transfer the trademarks
to the Company at a consideration of US$3 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB18.3 million), and (i) for the period from the
date of the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange and prior to the date when the Company becomes the
registered owner of the trademarks, GIHL agreed to grant the
Group an exclusive license to use the trademarks at nil
consideration.

These trademarks have finite useful lives and are amortised on a
straight line basis over the periods of 5 to 9 years.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6 B 3% R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

O
1Ex
— . £5
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE QR ANRE Sg¥
2014 oy
RMB’000 S28
e Son
ARBEF T R
Unlisted investments in associates, at cost B RIE LT 2B E N a] - &
12 R A 32,120 — s
. S Ml A Sun
Exchange realignment ME 5, 38 B 137 — g
o
Share of post-acquisition profits FEEIRE R R -
and reserves 6,200 — .
s5u
£ E®
5 ol
38,457 — Sat
Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting RABREPFRAEEHE QDG 25 <
period are as follows: MiERMT £
g2
e
Proportion of issued ggg
Country of ordinary share %% B
incorporation capital indirectly g m
Name of entity and operation held by the Company Principal activity =
2NN
FEEFENERT 5 m
BEREB M MEEER ZER 2L FEEH 5*&2{
Oy
n D
S XX
Kaixin Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 45% — Investment holding .§§m
JBERBRAF REEABRES R AR
Goldpac ACS Technologies Inc. Philippines 45% — Inactive o A
("GATI") FREE ED £ SF
gsf
Sichuan Zhongruan Technology Ltd. PRC 19.68% —  Software development = O
("SCZR") (Note)
Pl BB R QA A HiaF R
(T &) g
S uw
v
Note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over SCZR because it B it - AN EE B RE £ 0T )] B I E K 2 2 ééﬁ
has the power to appoint two out of the seven directors of that BHARRENIFE® e RAERE  KE g&ﬂ
company under the Article of Association of that company. BEEERELEEEFFTHME - g A
o]
o

2
2
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 K& E2015F 12 A31HIE 2 FE

- —0
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REBFERTANKRE w0
Aggregate information of associates that are BRIEEKREERTWNE
not individually material wWER
2014
RMB’000
ARBTT
The Group's share of profit REBEEGRT 2,743 —
The Group's share of other comprehensive ANEBE EGE M2 M H X
expense (43) —
The Group's share of total comprehensive 75 & fE {5 2 Uk A & 58
income 2,700 —
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s Bt & 2 A1 2
interests in these associates FESBEAR 38,457 —
20. INVENTORIES 20. 7 &
2014
RMB’000
ARBTT
Raw materials R+ & 215,431 169,780
Work in progress F X 12,213 9,393
Finished goods X & 93,292 105,705
320,936 284,878
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. EWWE &

2014

RMB’000

ARBEF T

Trade receivables JE W E R 470,307 273,080
Retentions held by customers EEEEHERER 22,596 27,544
492,903 300,624

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices are
normally payable in 30 to 150 days by the customers from date
of issuance while retentions held by customers are normally
payable between 6 months to 1 year by the customers from the
date of issuance of invoices. The following is an aged analysis of
trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the date of delivery of goods which approximated the
respective dates on which revenue was recognised:

HEFNNRBEREELARE -BE
— R B30 E1508 A
HMEPYN MEFEBEMREBR—
RN EZAME NEA R —
FANZAH - ZEYWRFTAB(ES S
WHREHAER) 27 M EKE R
(BRIRBE BEBRSTOT -

2014
RMB’000
ARET T

Age R
0-90 days 0-90 H 358,590 215,230
91-180 days 91-180 H 66,387 31,770
181-365 days 181 % 365 H 42,270 37,006
Over 1 year (note) Bl —F () 25,656 16,618
492,903 300,624

Note: Included in the above balance aged over one year at 31 December
2015 were retentions held by customers for sales of goods of
RMB12,703,000 (31 December 2014: RMB13,057,000).

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Bt - E i R20154F 12 531 HBR B 8 —
FHEREOEEFPHEDHEN A
HIR B % A A R 12,703,0007T (2014
F12A31HABARK13,057,0007T) °

AEBEYERZFEHRFTHETMAE
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B Bt 3 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 K& E2015F 12 A31HIE 2 FE

21.

142

—o0

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2015, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances are trade receivables with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB13,144,000 (2014: RMB2,793,000) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as continuous repayment was noted subsequent
to the end of the reporting period.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired is
as follows:

21. EWRE R @

R2015F12 83180 » &K £ B E W
ERERrTPEERERERAR
# 13,144,000 7T (2014 F A A R ¥
2,793,0007T) &I FE W & 3k - 5% F 3K IE
RWEAHE @ BRSES KRR
EEEFTIRE® - TR WS E
REDEEWKEER -

B 380 89 181 o L 1 8 U S5 3 0 B
mE -

2014
RMB’000
ARBFT

Age IR
91-180 days 91-180H 5,969 2,623
181-365 days 1812 365H 3,151 156
Over 1 year HBid—F 4,024 14
13,144 2,793

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the reporting
date. The directors of the Company considered that the
concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base
being large and unrelated.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

O
SER
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. B E K o
No interest is charged on trade receivables. Allowances on trade TEWE R Tt E o JEWE B #H = 8
receivables are made based on estimated irrecoverable amounts THIR 5 65 & B W s IR 1 R S e 14 5t S28
from the sales of goods or provision of services by reference to AAYEEEEL  ERFE2E6BT IR
past default experience and objective evidences of impairment BHACHBEEFEAELRZREBR
determined by the difference between the carrying amount and F RN EFAKRRESARERE gsu
the present value of the estimated future cash flow discounted at MEZEZRETHNEBERMEITE - ugiﬂ
the original effective interest rate. %t;
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows: RERBHEEZEHMOT -
i =
giw
2014 E5E
RMB'000 S ot
ARBETF T
s
7 %
At 1 January »1A1H 7,260 5,519 258
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised on 7t JiE W R IB 32 10 (B [E]) 3 8 %gﬁ
receivables (34) 2,268 som
Bad debts written off B HE R — (527) § n
At 31 December ®12H31H 7,226 7,260 5 m
\ - el
At the end of the reporting period, the allowance for doubtful RB|BERR  REBEEHEERNRER e
debts represented individually impaired trade receivables which WENR ZERBEEBAH-—BRER 28
have been overdue for a long time and the directors of the M BERARAIEERA BEB/AL s
Company consider that the recoverability of these debts are low B WEZERENRSTK -

based on historical experience.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 K& E2015F 12 A31HIE 2 FE

. —0

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

22, HE W K& 7 FIE

2014

RMB’000

AREF T

Rental and utility deposits e MKEHE 1,943 2,379

Tender deposits BWIERES 5,296 1,709

Deposits paid to suppliers TG EERONES 835 852
Prepayments to the Trustee (as defined in ~ {Z#E 78 7k (2 B 37 32())

note 32(c)) 8,302 —

Other prepayments and deposits HEMmENRERES 3,213 6,618

19,589 11,558

23. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The balance is unsecured and interest-free. An amount of
approximately RMB814,000 (2014: nil) is expected to be
repayable after one year, and the amount is therefore shown as
non-current. For the remaining amount of approximately
RMB4,153,000 (2014: nil), the amount is repayable on demand.

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

23. FE U B & 1 B K

EHRABEBEREE - HERHARK
814,0007L (2014 : Z)FET M 1F 1% E
B2 RALAFERDHEE - HHROAR
#4,153,0007C (2014 : &) & fE Bk

Financial assets designated at FVTPL
— unlisted funds in PRC —

BAREEFAR
A ELETES

iz -
HittEm&EE
2014
RMB’000
AREF T
RNEMAE
— 740,000

The unlisted funds in PRC represented funds managed by a PRC
investment trust with underlying financial instrument mainly
consist of bank deposit, deposit reservation balance and the
bonds of PRC. The unlisted funds could be redeemed at anytime
at the discretion of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

25.

26.

FIXED BANK DEPOSITS, PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The pledged bank deposits are pledged for bills
payables and carry interest at the prevailing market interest rate
ranging from 0.50% to 4.13% (2014: 2.85% to 3.10%) per
annum.

Bank balances held by the Group carry interest at the rate of 0.30%
10 1.12% (2014: 0.35% to 1.15%) per annum.

Fixed bank deposits held by the Group are denominated in RMB
and carry interest at the rate of 0.75% to 4.13% (2014: 3.10%
t0 3.35%) per annum. Included in the balance as at 31 December
2015, RMB138,351,000 (2014: RMB319,600,000) of fixed bank
deposits are carried with original maturity over three months.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25. MITEHFH B

R

E 1T
FROBTERRRZ

BIERERRSBEEAEBMEE
MIRE R =ZEAKE=ZMANRZ
HOWEHETER BEBBETERA
EREMNEE  EHFEFEIERITME
F &N 720.50% £ 4.13% (2014 4F A
2.85% E3.10%) 5F 8 o

REBHENRTEREFF
%0.30% E1.12% (2014F A£0.35% =
1.15%) 5T & o

REBBEAENRTEHERUAR
Bt B 120.75% £ 4.13% (2014 4F
#3.10% %£3.35%) B F Fl = 5 B o
2015F 12 A31H AR M & & R1T
F B 17 A R %5 138,351,0007T (2014
F£ A AR #319,600,0007T) 2 2 HA 2
B=MEA -

26. ERNERKRENEE

2014
RMB’000
AREF T
Trade payables AN
— Gemalto's subsidiaries — Gemalto & fft B A 7 173,069 337,706
— Gemalto's related company — Gemalto ] B8 &
— DataCard Corporation — DataCard Corporation 5,139 21,199
— third parties —%=5 235,224 114,861
413,432 473,766
Bills payables — secured BERENRIR
— Gemalto's subsidiaries — Gemalto & [ B A 7] 128,337 —
— third parties —%=h 25,548 73,120
153,885 73,120
567,317 546,886
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. —0

26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

27.

146  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015

The Group normally receives credit terms of 60 to 180 days from
its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of the Group's
trade and bills payables based on invoice date at the end of the

26 ERNERRENEE @

REE—fEHERIZEMH0EZE180
ARNEEH - TAASREHERAE
BEMERLENEZEEZEEQ

reporting period: B BE B D AT ¢
2014
RMB’'000
AREF T
Age IR
0-90 days 0£90H 484,836 361,167
91-180 days 912 180H 64,110 171,728
181-365 days 1812 365H 14,194 12,273
Over 1 year Bl —F 4,177 1,718
567,317 546,886
OTHER PAYABLES 27. HtLEN RIE
2014
RMB’'000
ARBEFT
Customers’ deposits BEPRES® 45,727 56,638
Payroll and welfare payables JE TE KRR T 38,665 29,575
Value-added tax payables FETIEE T 41,547 26,907
Warranty provision RESBE 4,775 4,775
Delivery and postage payables ERNEERBE 14,399 1,864
Other tax payables E b E N R 378 1,077
Other payables H A FE A B 2,171 2,380
147,662 123,216
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28. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

28. BUAT #E Bh

2014
RMB’000
AREF T
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 1 January »1HA1H 4,820 3,100
Government grants received during T (A BT U IR T 4 B
the year 17,000 1,720
Released to profit or loss during FRNEFAEZRE
the year (3,100) —
At 31 December ®12A318 18,720 4,820

Goldpac Limited (formerly known as Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai)
Limited) received government grants throughout the year from
the relevant PRC local authorities as an incentive in relation to
technical know-how on the development of smart cards and
solutions services. Such government grants were recognised in
the profit or loss as other income, expenses, gains or losses when
the research was completed and the related verification
procedures have been completed and approved by the PRC local
authorities.

29. BANK LOANS

eHEARAR(EA/IKENE B E
RERAR AR FARMEE MR
BRI REEE R RERT
EEMBERMER - BB HEE
s ek - HARERETFTRELES
B B BT B P HE 1R R 1 S E A ik
A MBI kA AR e

29. SRITE R

2014
RMB’000
ARBEF T
Carrying amount repayable within one year —F RN EEEZREM S &
and amounts shown under current REBEEETSE

liabilities

At 31 December 2015, the Group had unutilised available credit
facilities amounting to RMB561,533,000 (2014: RMB188,062,000).

R2015%F 128310 KEB KB A A
FiEEmE &% A5 AREES61,533,0007C
(20144 A AR % 188,062,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 K& E2015F 12 A31HIE 2 FE

- —0

30. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the deferred taxation recognised and movements

thereon during the year:

30. ELE B

SEDE

LTREBINEEREALREFRA

PRC withholding tax
on undistributed

earnings

A B R o B A

FERAEH

RMB'000

AREF T

At 1 January 2014 20141 A1H 7,578
Charged to profit or loss during the year (note 12) FANFTAB=E (K iF12) 5,829
At 31 December 2014 201412 A31H 13,407
Charged to profit or loss during the year (note 12) FANFFAB=E B E12) 9,341
At 31 December 2015 2015412 A31H 22,748
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O
S
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. g & S
Number of = Se
: S oum
ordinary Par fim
shares value  Amount IR
EERYE H 8 ¢8| -
Notes '000 HK$ HK$'000 5&
B3t F B EETFR 5K
= 2
Authorised: JEE R
At 1 January 2014 20141 A1H 4,000,000 0.001 4,000 B
IS EHH
At 31 December 2014 72014412 A31H N/A (Note) S &
and 2015 201512 A31H i@ (K )
s
Note: Under the HKCO, with effect from 3 March 2014, the concept of fit i < 1R 220144 3 A 3 H #8 4 3 69 & 8 2 g x
authorized share capital no longer exists and the Company’s shares no AlED) A ERA B EET E 7 E A a (_%g
longer have a par value. There is no impact on the number of shares in g ’57 # //&j f’i f,ﬁfﬁ & x ///i #BET g ik
issue or the relative entitlement of any of the shareholders as a result of = 2 %ﬁz/& f;;’jz f_; 525 & EARR A é%g
this transition. BRFEREAZE S
=
Issued and fully paid: EETAHE -
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1HA1H 830,000 0.001 830 -E;g;’
Transfer from share premium HEREILEMEN s
upon abolition of par value PRtk 8 — N/A 1,474,077 o @&ﬁ
Issue of shares upon exercise of 1T 1 IR § gm
share options PrE& 1T D @) 707 N/A 2,762 °
At 31 December 2014 20144512 A31H 830,707 N/A 1,477,669 5w
Issue of shares of upon exercise 110 B R §g§§
of share options PR AT BB AD (b) 3,784 N/A 19,454 co
Shares repurchased and B 8 % 5% 8 I (0
cancelled (c) (824) N/A — g
S uw
QL B
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31H 833,667 N/A 1,497,123 ¢ 28
bt
S 4
RMB’000 S
ARBFT
Shown in the financial statements FE/R A T 5l 81 5 R X
as
— at 31 December 2015 — 201512 A31H 1,190,419 £
£
— at 31 December 2014 — 201412 A31H 1,175,015 %

SHEERERERAA —T—AFFH 149
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

150

Notes:

() During the year ended 31 December 2014, 707,000 share options were
exercised and converted into 707,000 ordinary shares at the conversion

price of HK$2.71.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2015, 3,784,000 share options
were exercised and converted into 3,784,000 ordinary shares at the

conversion price of HK$2.71.

() During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group repurchased and
cancelled a total 824,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an
aggregate purchase of HK$3,772,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,984,000, exclusive of transaction cost) on the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the Company repurchased its own ordinary
shares through the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as

31. B 7K @)

i

(@) REF2014F12A318Z2FE B
707,000 5% fi& i HE 1 17 R VE M 2.71 077
1% 7 ¥ % 707,000 % 2 38 A% -

(b) REFE2015F12A31HILZFE A&
3,784,000 % BE R 1 1% &7 IR /& M5 2.71 7T
77100 #2 5 3,784,000 % & i K ©

(0 REF2015F12A31H 1F 2 F &
AEBNBEXETEEL T T A
824,000/ X 1 7] Y H AR - B fE 2
B8 G153 7720007 (1HERA R K
2,984,000 * K EIERXZEHH) -

REE2015F12A831H ZFE - K
NAERE R AR B AR R E BRI

follows: T
Price per share Aggregate
No of BRNIE consideration
ordinary shares Highest Lowest paid
Month of repurchase [ & A % ZEREB BS BIK S fHEE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
B B BT T
February 2015 201542 H 580,000 4.89 4.80 2,817
March 2015 201543 H 244,000 3.96 3.85 955
3,772

The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

All the shares which were issued during the year rank pari passu

with the then existing shares in all respects.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The pre-IPO share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 for the primary purpose
of recognise the contribution of certain employees and
directors made or may have made to the growth of the
Group and/or the listing of the Group on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, and will expire on 3 December 2019.

At 31 December 2013, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the pre-IPO share option scheme was 36,000,000,
representing 4.5% of the shares of the Company in issue
immediately upon completion of the listing of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Options granted must be taken up on 19 November 2013,
upon payment of HK$1.0 by the grantee.

2. LR BERNXIAAXRS

(a)

BXRXAHRENBRE
Bl
BRAAABEESABERETER
2013F 11 15 B E 2 RERR A
EmrzitE BEEBEALAE
BETREERESC LN EE
HAEEEE RS D R B
R EMAEOER TR
2019F 12 A3H 28 -

M2013FE12A318 & B X
AHAEENBEREFTETE
BHERERTERNDOEE A
36,000,000 * {2~ & 4E & & B
REERBEEREITORD
HEMA5% °

BB AR KB IE2013F 1
AR19BAI AL HABEI10THE
& F LAFHR o
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. LU AEBHN IR S

(Continued) (#8)

(@) BR L AHREABRE
& &l )

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share TRBEEARNNESNEEM
options held by directors and employees and movements in HENERELRENRNE
such holding for both years:

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Number of share options
BREZE

At Exercise At Exercise Forfeiture At
Exercise price 1 January during 1 January during during 31 December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2014 the year 2015 the year the year 2015
R20145 20145 H2015% 2015F 20156 H2015%
REAH BEH Eigid BRITEE 1818 FRITE 1818 FRTHE FREANM 128318
Directors
iz
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 19 November 2014 HKD2.71 1,640,000 — 1,640,000 (1,440,000) — 200,000
201311198 to 18 November 2014 to 3 December 2019 E¥2LTIT
2013511 A198 & B2014F11A198 %
2014511188 20194 12A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 19 November 2015 HKD2.71 1,640,000 — 1,640,000 — 1,640,000
201311198 to 18 November 2015 to 3 December 2019 w82
201311 A19BE B20154 11198 %
201511 A 188 201912 A3A
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 19 November 2016 HKD2.71 1,640,000 — 1,640,000 — 1,640,000
201311198 to 18 November 2016 to 3 December 2019 BELITT
5201311 F19BE B2016511 4198 %
2016511 A 188 2019%12A38
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 19 November 2017 HKD2.71 1,640,000 — 1,640,000 — 1,640,000
2013F 118198 to 18 November 2017 to 3 December 2019 w82
82013511 A19BE B2017F11A19BE
201711 A 188 2019412 A38
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 19 November 2018 HKD2.71 1,640,000 — 1,640,000 — 1,640,000
2013118198 t0 18 November 2018 to 3 December 2019 w82 T
82013511 A19B % B20185F11 A19B &
2018511180 2019512438
8,200,000 — 8,200,000 (1,440,000) — 6,760,000
Employees
(3]
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 19 November 2014 HKD2.71 5,560,000 (707,000) 4,853,000 (1,767,000) — 3,086,000
20135118198 to 18 November 2014 to 3 December 2019 E¥2LT
201311 198 % 52014511 19 %
2014511 R 188 2019612438
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 19 November 2015 HKD2.71 5,560,000 — 5,560,000 (577,000) (112,000) 4,871,000
20135118198 to 18 November 2015 to 3 December 2019 ok NP
201311 198 % 5201561119 %
2015511 A 188 201912 A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 19 November 2016 HKD2.71 5,560,000 — 5,560,000 (112,000) 5,448,000
201311 A 198 to 18 November 2016 to 3 December 2019 ¥
B2013F1MA19BE B2016F 114198 %
201611 A 188 2019612 A3R
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 19 November 2017 HKD2.71 5,560,000 — 5,560,000 (112,000) 5,448,000
201311 A 198 to 18 November 2017 to 3 December 2019 E¥LIIT
B2013F11A19B%E B201711A198 %
201711188 2019612 A3H
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 19 November 2018 HKD2.71 5,560,000 — 5,560,000 (112,000) 5,448,000
201311 A 198 to 18 November 2018 to 3 December 2019 B8
B2013F11A19B%E B2018F 11 A19B %
201811 A 18H 2019612 A3R
27,800,000 (707,000) 27,093,000 (2,344,000) (448,000) 24,301,000
Total
At 36,000,000 (707,000) 35,293,000 (3,784,000) (448,000) 31,061,000
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. UR#M AERHZAXHE St
(Continued) (48)
= E
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (@ BXR L AHREABRE g2
a8l g4
The fair values of the share options granted during the year REZ2013F12831HIE 2 F 2
ended 31 December 2013 were calculated at E BEENOBEREABALAERFE Eﬁ
RMB69,935,000 (equivalent to HKD88,954,000) using the A-ERAAETEEXGTE L gg
Binominal Option Pricing pricing model. The inputs into the A AR 69,935,000 (3T & 08
model were as follows: #88,954,0007T ) + X A = &0 h
Ik Y.
c OCJHH
£ £
Share price HKD4.52 e HE M4 50 T g EL:'HE
Exercise price HKD2.71 TEE WD 71T
Expected life 6 years JEHRIE= A 64
Expected volatility 46.9963% 78 HA 3 18 46.9963% é -
Expected dividend yield 1.0822% %EHE A% B U 2% 1.0822% 25;?2
Risk-free interest rate 1.2426% g | 2R 1.2426% ggf
Fair value per option HKD2.4250 to HKD2.4791 g{‘ ﬁ% R% 1 WS 4250 E ggfg
IRREE  E¥247917T 5 E
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical TEHOR IR 2B LR R & AT
volatility of the selected comparable comprises in the same ERTEMITLERBEBRATEAR ;g: Egg
industry. The expected life used in the model has been ZEXBZEREGE LR © %g
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the EEBEEptEEEMY . THR ggg
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and HETAREYENRZEMGE o Em
behavioural considerations. HITHE o °
The Group recognised the total expense of RMB 16,868,000 REZE2015F 1283181t & 5 g;*;
(2014: RMB30,186,000) for the year ended 31 December B ANEBGRADTE L ER ggﬁg
2015 in relation to share options granted by the Company. BT A AR 16868000 = O
7t (20144 /3 A R # 30,186,000
JT) ° g
E w
g
8%
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. LU AEBHN IR S

(Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme, approved
by the shareholder’s resolution passed on 15 November
2013, are substantially the same as the terms of the Pre-IPO
Option Scheme except that:

(i)  the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue at the date of listing
of the shares of the Company on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange; and

(i) the maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
in any 12-month period up to the date of offer to
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at
the date of offer to grant.

(i)  The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company at their discretion and will not be lower
than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at the offer
date, which must be a trading day; (b) the average
closing price of the ordinary shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (c) the nominal value of
the Company’s share.

As of 31 December 2015, no options have been granted or

agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme.

154  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015

(b) f&MRAEERTE

R2013F 11 A1SHBENRE
RERAMENERENEE
DREFEE X AFAEENER
BB RBMAR - AT ERE
Hh

(h BRERHZAKROET
BHBBARAREE R
MZBMEREN10% :

(i)  FEAEA—{E121E A #E R
ENREZB - BTEA
R2RENKSEBITE
BEEETHRMODANI%:
K

(i) TEEBEHARANES
MIEEE - BT RN A
T&eE ()% BRER
XMENBRHH KR
B bEBIMEZED
B AEEXANE
B R EFHE: (X
RAERMEE-

#H E2015%12A318 1t » &
RIFERETENBERERD
SRAEREEREEZTE -
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. LU AEBHN IR S

(Continued) (48)

() RtrERE &

(c) Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from 11
December 2015. The objective of the Share Award Scheme
are to (i) align the interests of any employee, adviser,
consultant, agent, contractor, client or supplier of any
member of the Group whom the directors in its sole
discretion considers may contribute or have contributed to
the Group (the “Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate
the contribution of the Participants and to provide
incentives in retaining the Participants for future operation
and development of the Group; and (iii) attract suitable
personnel for the long-term growth and further strategic
expansion of the Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
(the “Trustee”) to administer and hold the Company’s

A QR KR2015F 11 A30H8 ([
MBEDEREGEEEE ([
HEEETE]  BRHERE
B2015F 12 A11 B #5158 %5
BISF -5 a2 BEMNANFEE
ERABEEXBTEARERE
HERMZEE - 2F BEMH-
RE -AHBm BERREER
(Tst8l2mE]) 2 FmHEAR
EEFE B ()R EMEE
FElcmEzZER THTHE
B UHEBrral2mEs. AKX
EENBELCERERWN
KRS A EATHEAEE
FEHMERE—THBEAE-

ARAREREFRBEFRBER
HEXERRBA(TZREADE

BBRE

Financial
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2015 F KRER

2015 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

Management Discussion
and Analysis
BEEBHRR DN

shares before they are vested and transferred to the BEEBEEAARIZERD  BEE ';%ES;’

Selected Participants. The Trustee purchases the Company'’s EZBBERKEHEFE A % Ex

shares being awarded from the open market with funds - SEFERMBEE FTE 2 ggg

provided by the Company by way of contributions. A - XTEAREBENRFFEAE g Em
[a]

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 27,000 ordinary
shares of the Company have been acquired at an aggregate
cost of HK$91,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB74,000). As at 31 December 2015, no shares have
been granted or agreed to be granted to the Selected
Participants.

ARTHEARRBRBRG
ERAARRARN -

B E E2015F12A8318 1t 2
FERKRQA B AKEE
91,000 (#H & R AR &
74,0007T) B8 A K A &) #927,000
% & i o RELZE2015F 12 A
BNEILEZFE MAERME
KETFHEERT FirE20R
Ao
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33. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

156

—0

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group acquired
the entire equity interest in Goldpac Golden Card Equipment
(Zhuhai) Ltd. (the “Acquired Subsidiary”) for consideration of
RMB2,000,000. The acquisition has been accounted for using the
purchase method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of
the acquisition was RMB1,375,000 which is engaged in trading

of secure payment product in PRC.

33. WiEM B 2 A

REZE2015F 1283181t 2 F &
AEBHE ARK2000,0007T K E
THAEmEARESRRREERA
A(REBZHBRG) 2B EZR %
WEZHBRARITZEEFREEE R
Y NER - ZWBUNBEXAE

WEEHL Z2mEE A AR1,375000

7TE o
RMB’000
ARBF T
Consideration for the acquisition: IR 1E :
Cash consideration BeRE 2,000
RMB’000
AR¥EF T
Assets and liabilities recognised atthe RUWBRABACEEREE:
date of acquisition:
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 217
Bank balances and cash wITEBRIES 410
Tax payable FERH & )
625
Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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33. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

33. WEBEKY B 2 A )

RMB’000
AR¥TF T
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEBEE-EE:
Consideration transferred FTZ 2 KB 2,000
Less: recognised amount of identifiable W EHERZARRFEE
net assets acquired (625)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEEZHE 1,375
RMB'000
ARETFT
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEE4E 2 FRER :
Cash consideration paid for acquisition WESNZRE 2,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances BB ReEERESEEYD
acquired (410)
1,590

Included in the profit for the year is approximately RMB4,900
generated by the Acquired Subsidiary Limited. Revenue for the
year includes approximately RMB641,000 generated from the

Acquired Subsidiary Limited.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015, total
group revenue for the year would have been RMB1,684.7 million,
and profit for the year would have been RMB241.9 million. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purpose only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015, nor is it intended

to be a projection of future results.

AEEFBREETHEZHNEB A
B ZFEAOAREEL900TT - NEE
BEEBHPRETWEZNBARZ
BEREYH AREG641,0007T °

R a0 Uy B8 2% 4+ 20151818
AEEEEBAEEBEHEAARE
1684 7B L FEFMBBAAR
B2M9BEB L - % BREEERD
Atz BER AR ERBROUKEREE
R2015F 1818 AREBEER — &
BEMBZEXERFE  MIERBKRK
Z F AR TE A -

CHEERERERLA —T—RFFHRK 157

o

DREH

Corporate
Information

BBRE

Financial
Highlights

2015 F KRER

2015 Major Events

EERE

Chairman’s
Statement

and Analysis
EREIAWRDN

Management Discussion

REERE

Management
=

BEER

Report of Directors and Senior
Directors
EEERE

Corporate Governance
Report
EERBRE

41
W
B
=

2
2
=
[
£
I3
g
O
5
wv
s
v
=
©
£
'S




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5 B 3% R R M o ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 K& E2015F 12 A31HIE 2 FE

34.

35.

. —0

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to
make the following future minimum lease payments for office
premises under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

34, KREHEAIE

AEEFERERA
RABEREK - AEEEBHTTH
B 40 48 4 T B B AR M M R OR
SEBENKE  HBEOT -

2014

RMB’'000

ARBEFIT

Within one year R—FR 6,692 7,438
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE—_ZTFEFRF 2,635 9,272
9,327 16,710

Leases are negotiated for a term of 1 to 3 years and rentals are
fixed for an average of 2 years.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

BHOME3FERHEE HEFY
TMEREED -

35. B A& IE

2014
RMB’000
ARBETT

Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

BRWEYE BB RREN
BRI ERIARGS
MBHRRANEARFEX

4,503 25,489
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A B R R MR (D

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

36.

37.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group's operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll
costs to the scheme capped at a maximum of HK$1,500 per
month. This contribution is matched by the employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligations of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme are to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the transactions and balances with related parties
disclosed in respective notes, during the year, the Group had the
following significant transactions with related parties:

Relationship and
name of related company

BARBBARERE REME

36.

37.

Nature of transactions

R K 8 T E

ARBREBNEGREBS2NEE
MES - REENESCHAEERE
o HBETEABCEE - BEEE
CHEIER BEFEHNEBIEEH
WAKIS5% » LA A% 1,500 & £
ReBESMZzEREEEER -

AEERTEMBLAANASHRESR
S2MATERFEFNBERELR
KEMEE - ZFHBRBARET
BB — E L Pl A R KR B A &
AR o AN 5= B LR IR B 5T 81 & e —
BERRBZAT R ER R -

SRS

BRI ENEBE NS

Companies controlled by Gemalto
N. V. (“Gemalto") (Note):

i Gemalto N.V 2 B3 #1689 A &)
([Gemalto ) (K7 at) :

Purchase of materials

JRET ¥ EREE

Gemalto Pte. Ltd.

Purchase of materials

JRAT ¥ EREE

Shanghai Axalto IC Card Technologies Co.,
Ltd. (LSS HERHRE RRITERA )

Purchase of materials

BRI

Gemalto Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(BRI EBRAF])

RAGERIN  RAFEAR  AEEHEE
AN TEARS

2014

RMB’000

ARETT

30 1,642

— 90,874

618,805 497,532

Note: Gemalto is a company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands
and whose shares are listed and traded on NYSE Euronext Amsterdam
and NYSE Euronext Paris. It controlled Gemplus International S.A., a
substantial shareholder of the Company with significant influence and a
limited liability company incorporated in Luxembourg, throughout both
years.

CHEERERERAQT

Bt &% - Gemalto 2 1R 5 fa B )% 72 7£ B] 451 2 ¥
SRR EF X ZETHE T 09,2 Bl iE 5 32
5 BT M B R 49 58 25 38 552 Bl 38 5 BT
89 2 ] o Gemalto 2 #1 2K 1\ 7] 1
KEEZETERE TE—FRE
REBFMA L EE R E (F 2 7975
Gemplus International SA °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B Bt 3 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 K& E2015F 12 A31HIE 2 FE

37.

38.

160

—o0

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The details of remuneration of key management personnel,
represents directors of the Company paid during the year are set
outin note 11.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Bank of China Limited (“BOC") is a company established in the
PRC and whose shares are listed and traded on the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange. BOC is the ultimate
holding company of BOCI Investment, who was a substantial
shareholder of the Company and is considered as a connected
person under the Listing Rules since December 2013 up to 12
November 2014. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Group sold goods totalling RMB175,901,000 to companies
controlled by BOC.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015

37.

38.

R R SF @

ARAXNGTEEREBABRE
ERXOMESPAFEHNM T -

BERRS

FEBRITRSBRA AR BER
THDR—RKEILAFE - R E B
REIMEBR BT EMH AR AE
RITEFEREBRKRERRRANK&
BAEIR AR PIREIRIEE B R A A
= AN RQ A B2013F 12 A 2201446 11
ANRABM—UFERE  WRELEST
RAEREAARRAEIHEANE
BH e REE2014%F12A318B 2 F
EAEBEFXPEBITEH QR
e mEESANRE175901,0007T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

R B # R AR MY A ()

REE2015F12A31BILZ2FE

39. SUBSIDIARIES

39. ff B A A

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries, all of which are
wholly-owned by the Company, at 31 December 2015 and 31

December 2014 are as follows:

Place/Country of
incorporation/
establishment/

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital
ERITRBERE
DERYL, B MR HEE
MEARER e - BER EMES
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Hong Kong Ordinary shares
Company Limited* — HK$500,000
SHEHERERAA]* BE T
— 7 #500,0007T
Goldpac Limited* PRC Registered capital

(formerly known as
Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai)
Limited)

eAEERQA
(B ETHERT R
BRAFE)

Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou)

Limited

f
o
o
[\\y

BN FESRERBERR

|

Notes:

* Directly held by the Company.

for a term of 50
years as a wholly
foreign owned
enterprise
commencing
21 June 1995
&
1R FA19954F
6H21AAH
E+E89NE
WERE
PRC
limited liability
company

HE
BREFERF

— USD43,000,000

FEEA
— %443,000,0007T

Registered capital
— RMB1,000,000

EMEA
— AR%
1,000,0007T

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CHEERERERAQT

A2015F12 431 H & 2014512 A 31
B BAQFAZEHRE OB QR
IGE 2SN

Proportion of
issued ordinary

share capital held

by the Company Principal activities
AREMEE LT
BERLEH EEER

2014

100% 100% Sales of smart cards
carrying personal
identity and other
payment solution
services

HEMRARBMHFER R
SRR

Research, manufacture
and sales of smart
cards carrying personal
identity and other
payment solution
services

100% 100%

g - RUEMHE
ARSI ER R
S ARARTT R

100% 100% Sales of smart cards
carrying personal
identity and other
payment solution
services

HEBRARTHER R
SN VS

© HERATEERE

RAREREIARFEEZEMERA - &
MBARYEETEMBESRES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 K& E2015F 12 A31HIE 2 FE

—0

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

162

40. Bt % AR R R«

2014
RMB’000
ARBEFIT

Non-current assets IRBEE
Intangible assets BmRAE 13,546 15,835
Property, plant and equipment LE N 583 —
Investments in subsidiaries REBARZE 290,077 273,209
304,206 289,044

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W B A B 5B 310,000 322,675
Other receivables E b e U sk 8,438 —
Fixed bank deposits RITEHEFER 296,089 617,600
Bank balances RITHER 631,860 16,525
1,246,387 956,800
Current liabilities RBAaE

Other payables Hfh fE TR 1,092 1,641
Amount due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE /| 300,594 —
301,686 1,641
Net current assets REBEEEE 944,701 955,159
Net assets BEEFRE 1,248,907 1,244,203

Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital A% X 1,190,419 1,175,015
Reserves s 58,488 69,188
Total equity DR 1,248,907 1,244,203

The Company'’s statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2016

and are signed on its behalf by:

LU Run Ting
EFE

Chairman and Executive Director

EFRFTERNTEF

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2015

EEZCN2016F3A16HEXZRI @
BARNR BRI BRROED - WA

NTEFEREREE:
HOU Ping
&F

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

HITEFHKERNTTE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6 B 3% R R M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 R#EE2015F 12 A31H I 2 FE

(Continued)

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

40. Bf & AR R R 3R )

Movement in the Company’s reserve AR ZREREREB R
Shares
held
under
share Share Retained
Share award options profits
premium scheme reserve (deficit) Total
B% 47 5% &
B gL K5 B FE
B4 EE 2R BRERE (E#8) #Eg
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT ARB®TT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2014 R2014%F1 818 1,172,184 — 3,800 (31,211) 1,144,773
Profit and total FEFERM
comprehensive income ZEKA
for the year — — — 98,620 98,620
Issue of shares upon A 17 {50 i A% BE
exercise of share options %% 77 i& 15
(note 31) (Bt7E31) — — (667) — (667)
Transfer from share HEEE F1ETE
premium upon abolition & (B ¥ &
of par value (1,172,184) — — —  (1,172,184)
Recognition of equity- REm AR
settled share-based & AERI
payment FIE — — 30,186 — 30,186
Dividends recognised as BREDEH
distribution (note 73) &8 (B7aE13) — — — (31,540) (31,540)
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31H — — 33,319 35,869 69,188
Profit and total FEFEM
comprehensive income ZHEKA
for the year — — — 48,300 48,300
Repurchase of shares 1% 17 [E] B — — — (2,984) (2,984)
Issue of shares upon FT{E BB AR #E
exercise of share options 317 #) i% {5
(note 31) (K1zE31) — — (7,231) — (7,231)
Purchase of shares under R 15 f&1) 2 @ =+ 2|
share award scheme 8 A B 19 — (74) — — (74)
Recognition of equity- BREREEI
settled share-based f& 10 A E T = A
payment RIA — — 16,868 — 16,868
Dividends recognised as ~ #R A& D A% B
distribution (note 13) (Ktz£13) — — — (65,579) (65,579)
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31H — (74) 42,956 15,606 58,488
SHEBZERARLIR —T—HEEH 163
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MERE

0
Year ended 31 December
HIER12A31B2EE
2011 2012 2013 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT AREBTT ARETT
RESULTS E
Turnover ] 444,255 676,609 1,112,260 1,521,069 1,684,632
Profit before taxation % 4 B A B 62,023 137,948 183,330 256,552 296,179
Taxation FH1E (13,941) (22,835) (42,505) (43,045) (54,341)
Profit for the year FEFH 48,082 115,113 140,825 213,507 241,838
At 31 December
M12H31H
2011 2012 2013 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTTT ARETT ARBTIT ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ENE&E
Total assets BB E 521,010 707,908 1,945,875 2,317,297 2,606,841
Total liabilities waeE (373,963) (494,441) (548,763) (706,459) (792,627)
Net assets FEE 147,047 213,467 1,397,112 1,610,838 1,814,214
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